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Total return to our shareholders
during 2003 was 26.3%, which
is comparable to the returns 
of the broader market with the
Dow Jones Industrial Average 
and the S&P 500 increasing by 
25.0% and 26.4%, respectively.

Although this is a noteworthy achieve-

ment, our return to shareholders trailed

that of our peers, with the NAREIT Equity

REIT and Office Indices posting returns

of 37.1% and 34.0%, respectively. While

pleased with the total return for one year,

we were more pleased by a report by

Citigroup Smith Barney in April 2003 that

reported Parkway as the number one per-

forming REIT in the United States for total

return to shareholders from 1994 through

2002, with a compounded annual return

of 23.5%. Long-term total shareholder

return measured by dividends and stock

price increase is the ultimate measure

of performance, and your Company was

number one over this time frame.  

While our growth in equity returns is

important, another noteworthy accomp-

lishment in 2003 was the evolving com-

position of our asset base. In March

we closed the Viad Corporate Center

joint venture in Phoenix with Investcorp

International, and in May we closed the

joint venture of two Jackson properties 

with a group of 35 individual investors. We

sold BB&T Financial Center in Winston-

Salem, North Carolina, in August, retaining

a ten-year management contract and

recognizing a gain of over $5 million.

Proceeds from the joint ventures and sale

were reinvested into five new properties in

Atlanta, Houston, Charlotte and Orlando,

causing Parkway’s portfolio of assets

under management to grow by almost

1.3 million square feet. This demonstrates

our commitment to ASSET RECYCLING,

using proceeds from joint ventures and

sales to diversify and expand our portfolio

into more institutional markets while

increasing our profitability through the

management, leasing and construction

fees earned from third parties. This series

of events pushes our total assets under

management to well above $1 billion.

Funds from Operations (FFO) totaled

$4.38 per diluted share in 2003 versus

$4.43 per diluted share in 2002. Our

58% customer retention rate for 2003

was below our six-year average of 75%,

reflecting the loss of two major customers

on December 31st and the current

competitiveness in the leasing market. 

Despite increasing office vacancy rates

nationally, your Company’s occupancy

rate ended the year at 87.9% and as

of March 1, 2004, the portfolio had

increased to 90.4% leased. Additionally,

we saw significant increases in leasing

activity in the fourth quarter and continue

experiencing a stronger leasing environ-

ment in the first quarter of 2004 than

we have seen in some time. We believe

the office markets have bottomed out. 

With supply of new office buildings in 

check and the demand for office jobs 

increasing; the long awaited recovery

appears to be taking hold.

Parkway’s internally measured net

asset value (NAV), a measure of the

underlying private market value of our

assets, falls in the $38.00 to $42.00 per

common share range. Our stock price

traded above our NAV for most of 2003,

reflecting strong funds flows into the

REIT industry and Parkway’s position

within the industry. Well-operated REITs

with sound strategies and solid balance

sheets should trade at modest premiums

to underlying NAV due to liquidity,

transparency of information, diversi-

fication and the public market discipline

that management offers. Last year we

promised to work diligently to improve

our trading relative to our NAV, and

we are pleased to be able to report 

a dramatic improvement.

We were pleased by a report by Citigroup Smith Barney in April
2003 that reported Parkway as the number one performing REIT
in the United States for total return to shareholders from 1994
through 2002 with a compounded annual return of 23.5%.

President’s Letter
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Customer
retention 
drives profit.
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Uncompromising 
focus on operations

In addition to creating value for share-

holders via dividends and stock price

appreciation, having a strong focus on

operations creates opportunities for

the company to grow and become more

profitable. We believe a company’s

operating skills transcend local markets,

and when implemented properly, a good

operator can expand into new markets

profitably and efficiently. By focusing

on putting the best people on the job,

goal setting, customer retention, systems

and operations, Parkway delineates itself

as a strong “operator of ” rather than

just an “investor in” real estate. 

the profit driver: 
customer retention

Our secret to good operating perform-

ance is hardly a secret. We retain credit-

worthy customers; high customer retention

leads to higher occupancy and higher

net operating income (NOI). We control

operating expenses at the property and

corporate level. We finance this NOI

intelligently, which creates stable, growing

funds from operations. This in turn drives

funds available for distribution (FAD),

which creates higher dividends and

presumably stock price appreciation.

The last two are the only things our share-

holders routinely request and that we

steadfastly try to deliver. Doing all of

this takes a real effort from the entire

Parkway team. It also requires systems

and strategies that can and are executed

effectively. In the following pages we

will show you how we measure up on

these important metrics. 

Parkway has a long-standing reputation

of posting one of – if not the – highest 

customer retention rates in the industry.

Over the past seven years, through good

times and bad, your Company has main-

tained approximately a 75% customer

retention rate. This leads to higher occu-

pancy, less downtime between leases,

lower tenant improvement costs and

lower leasing commissions. All things

considered, we estimate that it costs

six times more to replace an existing

customer with a new one.

Our customer retention rate of 58% for

2003 does not mirror the commitment

we have to this goal and is principally due

to the loss of SkyTel in Jackson as a result

of the MCI/WorldCom bankruptcy and

the consolidation of Burlington Resources

into one location in Houston that Parkway

could not accommodate. Although

explainable, it does not mitigate the

effects of losing customers. In this report

I outline the actions taken in each of

these cities to backfill the space quickly.

Customers move out from time to time.

The important factor is the actions we 

take and the results we achieve when
faced with this challenge.

It is important to have time-tested,
as well as innovative, approaches to
producing new leases. Over the years
Parkway has implemented several new
leasing programs that work. Our Broker
Bill of Rights, short form lease and
customer advocacy programs are models
in the industry. These programs have
helped us maintain occupancy around
90% during a time when the national
occupancy rate is approximately 83%.
The chart below depicts that Parkway
outperforms the national average and
outperforms 12 of the 15 individual
markets in which we operate as well.

We believe that as this budding eco-
nomic recovery gains a foothold, more and
more businesses will hire new employ-
ees and expand their office space. Hiring
leads to increased office building occu-
pancy and ultimately better revenues
through rental rate increases. We believe
that Parkway’s fast-growing markets
will position us as early beneficiaries 
in an economic recovery.

Over the past seven 
years, through good
times and bad, your

Company has maintained
approximately a 75%

customer retention rate.
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Parkway
outperforms its markets

market parkway
market vacancy% vacancy%
Houston 15.7 10.5
Chicago 16.1 8.7
Atlanta 18.4 11.7
Columbia 14.9 10.4
Jackson 8.6 29.1
Memphis 15.2 11.1
Phoenix 18.3 9.3
Knoxville 8.0 7.0
Charlotte 14.7 6.7
Richmond 14.1 10.8
Orlando 14.4 5.8
Nashville 15.7 17.1
Hampton Roads 14.2 23.9
St. Petersburg 16.7 5.4
Ft. Lauderdale 15.4 5.2
Average 16.1 12.1

National 
Average 16.7



What do Jackson, Mississippi, and
Houston, Texas, have in common? Yes,
they are both Southern cities where
Parkway owns office buildings and both
are brutally hot and humid in August.
But they also shared similar leasing
challenges as 2003 came to a close. 
The first thing we did was recognize the
challenge early — impending vacancy
due to the loss of two major customers
on the same day. We came up with a game
plan that started with putting the best
leasing teams to work on backfilling
the space as quickly as possible.

Jackson

In Jackson we moved Bruce Moses,
a seasoned leasing executive, to the
SkyTel Centre to address the 156,000
square foot pending vacancy of SkyTel, a
subsidiary of MCI/WorldCom that had
given Parkway notice in the summer that
it would not renew its lease on December
31, 2003. Bruce was assisted by Jamie
Chustz, asset manager for the Jackson
Market, and Jim Ingram, chief investment
officer and former Jackson asset manager,
both of whom had significant experience
and relationships in the Jackson office
market. Reflecting on the leasing effort,
Jamie commented, “Early in the course
of the assignment, the confidence of the
leasing team grew quickly as it became
evident that this leasing effort included
a large number of officers, employees,
and leasing team members all focused
on and committed to a common goal.”
The Jackson leasing team planned early
for success. By putting the 4F program in
high gear and highlighting the property
amenities, the team positioned the
building for presentation to potential

customers. Next, the leasing team
formulated  a marketing strategy focused
on existing relationships in the Jackson
community and old-fashioned cold-
calling. A Top 50 prospect list was
developed and updated weekly to
monitor progress toward signed leases.

As a part of the repositioning process,
all Parkway employees were challenged

to participate in the renaming of the build-
ing to reflect its prominence within the
culturally-rich area of Jackson that is under-
going significant revitalization, including
over $65 million in planned and proposed
new development. City Centre was
selected as the new name and announced
to a standing-room-only crowd at a press
conference held January 15, 2004.

“To address an exercise of this magni-
tude in Jackson, Mississippi, we had to 

draw on every resource available, externally
and internally. Competition from other
downtown and suburban properties
led us to upgrade the public areas of
the building and significantly increase
our parking ratio,” explained Jim. To meet
the parking challenge, the team proposed
the construction of a 500-plus space
parking facility adjacent to the building.
The new parking facility was a major
consideration for Forman Perry Watkins
Krutz & Tardy LLP, in its early January
decision to lease 145,000 square feet.
The parking facility addresses parking
needs not only for City Centre, but also
for surrounding amenities, such as Thalia
Mara Hall, Mississippi Museum of Art,
Davis Planetarium and the Mississippi
Telecommunications and Training Center
that is now under construction.

“Make no mistake,” Bruce commented.
“Our leasing success flows directly from
the Company’s demonstrated commit-
ment to the building and the downtown
Jackson market, our reputation for deliver-
ing great customer service, competitive
deal-making and the passion we bring to
the entire process.” Through the efforts
of many and the strength of long-standing
relationships, the leasing team was able
to complete 196,000 square feet of new
leases in eight months, raising the build-
ing from 25% leased on January 1, 2004,
to approximately 92% leased today.

2
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The Jackson leasing team
was able to raise the building
from 25% leased on January 1,

2004, to approximately
92% leased today.

city centre / jamie chustz and bruce moses

a tale of cities



Houston

Burlington Resources gave Parkway

notice in spring 2003 that they would

be vacating 137,000 square feet on

December 31, 2003, in our 400 North

Belt building in Houston. The Houston

team quickly formulated a game plan

and immediately moved Jayson Lipsey, 

a talented, energetic young manager,

to 400 North Belt to lead the leasing

effort. Jayson joined Parkway’s Houston

team in June 2002 to manage and lease

the Town and Country Building and

proved his skills by raising the building

from 82% to 95% leased in less than

a year. Prior to moving to Houston, Jayson

spent a year in the Jackson corporate

office learning our culture. The mission

for the Houston leasing team was to

make it easy for customers and brokers 

to do business at 400 North Belt. 

Mitch Mattingly, Senior Asset Manager

and Jayson’s teammate, commented,

“We set out to immediately establish

an aggressive leasing philosophy at 400

North Belt by putting as many ‘lines 

in the water’ as humanly possible.” The

heavily tenant-representation brokered

market led the team to partner with Mark

Preston, a senior vice president of Moody-

Rambin, a long-standing Houston real

estate leasing and management company.

Jayson and Mark put into place a

marketing strategy using a combination 

of leasing tools, from the labor-intensive

mailing of building flyers to decision-

makers in surrounding ZIP codes to a 

more high-tech system of marketing

the building around the clock using

advanced technology. Using the power of

Internet distribution, the team employed

Informetrics to host a building web

site, www.400northbelt.com, that

facilitated the distribution of thousands

of e-mails advertising Parkway’s Broker

Bill of Rights and commitment to pay

100% of broker commissions within 48 

hours of lease execution. Informetrics 

also helped manage the flow of lease 

documents from expression of interest 

through the signing of a lease. Not to

leave any stone unturned, the team also

hosted a toll free 24-hour information

hotline for 400 North Belt. The hotline

is capable of faxing floor plans based

on a caller’s needs.  

Jayson commented, “At 400 North

Belt, we set out daily to provide the

highest level of customer service avail-

able in the real estate industry. Our motto

is ‘Speed with quality kills the comp-

etition.’ Our use of technology and cutting

edge marketing tools allowed us to

respond with greater speed and higher

quality, increasing our overall service

delivery.” The team’s strong work ethic

and sheer determination to lease space

helped the Houston team raise the build-

ing from 32% leased on January 1, 2004,

to approximately 62% leased today.

2 different 
markets

2 different
approaches
2 different 

leasing teams
1 result: 

Leased Space
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The Houston team 
raised the building 

from 32% leased on 
January 1, 2004, 

to approximately 62%
leased today.

400 north belt / jayson lipsey and mitch mattingly



Planning is important at Parkway

because we believe plans that are well

thought out and properly executed will

lead to a more predictable, consistent

earnings flow and higher value. Last year

I wrote to you outlining our new VALUE2

strategic plan. We are now a year into

the plan and it is time to grade our

progress in each area of the plan.

Venture with best partners
We completed the joint venture of Viad

Corporate Center in Phoenix with Invest-
corp and the joint venture of two Jackson
buildings with 35 individual partners in
2003. Our recent purchases have been
larger buildings in institutional markets
that will have stronger appeal to joint
venture partners, a strategy we will con-
tinue to pursue in 2004 and 2005.
We are evaluating our existing portfolio
for joint venture candidates and anticipate
joint venturing more of these properties,
as well as purchasing new properties with
the intent to joint venture them. 

Asset recycling
We sold the BB&T Financial Center

in Winston-Salem while maintaining

a 10-year non-cancelable management

contract. We also sold a three-acre parcel

of land adjacent to the Schlumberger

building in Houston for a gain of

$362,000. With proceeds from the

joint ventures, the sales and a common

stock offering in late March, we purchased

properties in Orlando (Citrus Center

and Maitland 200), Atlanta (Peachtree

Dunwoody Pavilion), Houston (Wells

Fargo), and Charlotte (Carmel Crossing),

totaling over $150 million.

Leverage neutral growth
We started 2003 with a debt to total

market capitalization of 45% and have

operated most of the year well below

40%. This was mainly due to the issuance

of 690,000 common shares in late

March, which raised a net $24 million and

an increase in the price of our common

stock. In June, we redeemed 2,650,000

shares of 8.75% Series A Preferred stock,

using a portion of the proceeds from the

common stock offering and the proceeds

from the new, less costly issuance of 2.4

million shares of 8.0% Series D Preferred

Stock. After combining the proceeds

from the common stock offering with

proceeds from the joint ventures and

sales, the proceeds were not 100%

invested immediately. This caused our

FFO growth to be lower than anticipated

in 2003, but demonstrates our discipline

in identifying assets to purchase that

meet our acquisition criteria. We antici-

pate that the Company’s debt to total

market capitalization will average around

45% for the three years of VALUE2.

During 2003, we closed four non-

recourse first mortgages, totaling

almost $100 million at a present

average interest rate of 4.75%. Finally,

in early 2004 we renewed and revised

our line of credit, which now has a

lower interest cost while allowing

greater financial flexibility.

Uncompromising focus  
on operations

Recognizing that in this difficult real
estate environment, operating efficiently
and consistently is more important than
ever before, we implemented the Un-
compromising Focus on Operations (UFO)
program in the first quarter of 2003,
whereby our Customer Advocate grades
each property in all areas of consistency
and high standards. This is done in
conjunction with the annual Customer
Advocate interviews with each customer.
We must continue to focus on the basics
of our business: customer retention,
leasing, and controlling operating ex-
penses and capital expenditures, to main-
tain our occupancy, which will have the
effect of maintaining and increasing
FFO and FAD. To achieve this con-
sistency, we are committed to training
people at all levels of the organization.

Equity returns to our
shareholders 10% greater
than our peer group

We are one-third of the way through the

Plan, and we are achieving this financial

goal. While our FFO growth for the first

twelve months of VALUE2 was not stellar

in absolute terms, with a negative 1.1% FFO

growth, we exceeded the FFO growth

of our peer group by more than 10%. 

Overall, we grade ourselves B+,

leaving room for improvement.
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Value
commitment
to planning and

2



culture and leadership
Last year we talked about the many

corporate scandals that provided the

impetus for Congress, the Securities

and Exchange Commission and the

New York Stock Exchange to pass new

regulations and restrictions on corporate

officers and boards of directors. While

we are adapting to the new legal

requirements placed on public companies

as a result of these new regulations,

our culture of doing the right things

the right way continues to be the major

influence on our behavior. We hold

ourselves to this higher standard, rather

than merely what is legally required.

For 32 years our culture has been based

on simple, understandable, often corny

philosophies such as “act like ladies

and gentlemen,” “treat everyone with 

respect,” “build the team,” “lead by

example,” “I Think I Can,” and others.

These values are important to us and

always have been. Simply put, culture

still matters and always will. Culture is

the square in VALUE2 that makes the

whole program work.

We believe our strong culture has

helped us to achieve an industry-leading

employee retention rate of 86%. In fact,

in the past ten years only one officer

has left the company. We believe happy

employees empowered to work to

their fullest potential lead to higher

customer satisfaction and ultimately 

a higher customer retention ratio and

profits as outlined earlier. Our culture

is one of open communication and

continuous self improvement. We

accomplish this through many different

means, including our monthly Parkway

Connection meeting, which is a con-

ference call for all employees to discuss

what is new in the Company and reinforce

important themes. We hold one-hour

Parkway University classes on relevant

subjects, taught mainly by in-house staff

We reinforce
teamwork in
achieving
superior results.
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We believe happy employees empowered to work to
their fullest potential lead to higher customer satisfaction
and ultimately a higher customer retention ratio and profits.



skilled in the topic. This year we imple-
mented two new levels of annual training:
assistant property manager training and
engineer training, joining our annual
property management and leasing training.
We recently introduced a new Intranet
and Internet web site that continues
to reinforce open communication of
critical information. Through these and
many other avenues, we reinforce the
importance of teamwork in achieving
superior results. Low turnover and high
emphasis on training lead to continuity 
of leadership and a deeper bench.

This year we made some important
leadership changes at Parkway. Tom
Maloney was promoted to chief
operating officer after years of demon-
strating an UNCOMPROMISING
FOCUS ON OPERATIONS. Tom’s goal
is to Raise the Bar, taking a very good
operation and making it a great operation.
Jim Ingram was promoted to chief invest-
ment officer after completing 14 years
with Parkway in various operating, leasing,
and asset acquisition/disposition roles.
In this new role, Jim’s charge is to make
Parkway more efficient and effective in our
Capital Allocation and Asset Recycling.
Marshall Loeb continues to serve as
our chief financial officer and directs

our finance and accounting strategy
in tandem with our company strategy.
Other important moves include Mitch
Mattingly’s elevation to senior asset
manager, which places him in charge of
the valuable relationship with our largest
joint venture partner, Investcorp, and
Mandy Pope’s taking on additional leader-
ship responsibilities in the accounting
area. There are many other great leaders
at Parkway. Every time I walk around our
corporate office or travel to our regional
offices and meet with our team members,
I am reminded what an enormously
talented and dedicated group of people
we have at all levels of Parkway.

We would like to welcome Lennie
Sullivan to our Board of Directors. Lennie
brings vast real estate, investment and 

financial expertise to our organization
and we have already benefited from her
experience. We also said goodbye to
Regina Shows, who left her position
as senior vice president of accounting
in 2003 after 15 years with Parkway
to devote more time to her three-year-
old twin girls and a family business. We
miss Regina’s leadership at the executive
level, but she leaves a legacy of hard-
working, well-trained professionals. 

In closing, we are grateful for the
support we have received over the
years from our shareholders, customers,
employees, and communities, without
whom we could not have accomplished
what we have. Thank you for the faith
you have placed in us; we pledge to work
hard every day to earn it.

Sincerely,

Steven G. Rogers
President and CEO
March 18, 2004
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Pictured left to right
marshall loeb, steve rogers, 

jim ingram, tom maloney

I am reminded what 
an enormously talented
and dedicated group 
of people we have at 
all levels of Parkway.



SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

Year 
Ended 

12/31/03 

Year 
Ended 

12/31/02 

Year 
Ended 

12/31/01 

Year 
Ended 

12/31/00 

Year 
Ended 

12/31/99 
(In thousands, except per share data) 

Operating Data: 
Revenues 
     Income from office and parking properties $142,196  $152,442  $135,968  $118,970  $113,161  
     Other income 3,854  2,818  2,767  3,507  1,120  
Total revenues 146,050  155,260  138,735  122,477  114,281  
Expenses 
     Operating expenses: 
          Office and parking properties 63,362  65,942  57,465  49,397  47,458  
          Non-core assets 37  34  39  60  112  
          Interest expense  16,319  19,839  21,828  16,371  15,346  
          Depreciation and amortization 28,030  27,412  23,788  19,651  17,413  
     Interest expense on bank notes 3,399  6,647  5,497  6,927  4,104  
     General and administrative and other 4,592  5,445  5,240  4,689  4,353  

Income before gain (loss), minority interest, and 
     discontinued operations  30,311  29,941  24,878  25,382  25,495  
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures 2,212  824  62  47  39  
Gain (loss) on joint venture interests, real estate 
     and real estate equity securities 10,661  (2,068) 1,611  9,471  795  
Minority interest - unit holders (3) (2) (3) (4) (2) 

Income before discontinued operations  43,181  28,695  26,548  34,896  26,327  
Income from discontinued operations -  47  -  -  -  
Gain on sale of real estate from  
     discontinued operations -  770  -  -  -  

Net income 43,181  29,512  26,548  34,896  26,327  
Original issue costs associated with redemption  
     of preferred stock (2,619) - - - - 
Dividends on preferred stock (5,352) (5,797) (5,797) (5,797) (5,797) 
Dividends on convertible preferred stock (6,091) (6,257) (3,249) -  -  

Net income available to common stockholders $  29,119  $  17,458  $  17,502  $  29,099  $  20,530  

Net income per common share: 
     Basic: 
     Income before  discontinued operations  $      2.85  $      1.78  $      1.87  $      2.96  $      2.04  
     Discontinued operations -  .09  -  -  -  
     Net income $      2.85  $      1.87  $      1.87  $      2.96  $      2.04  

     Diluted: 
     Income before discontinued operations $      2.79  $      1.75  $      1.85  $      2.93  $      2.01  
     Discontinued operations -  .09  -  -  -  
     Net income $      2.79  $      1.84  $      1.85  $      2.93  $      2.01  

Book value per common share (at end of year) $    26.09  25.10  $    25.33  $    26.51  $    25.55  
Dividends per common share $      2.60  $      2.56  $      2.45  $      2.12  $      1.90  
Weighted average shares outstanding: 
     Basic 10,224  9,312  9,339  9,825  10,083  
     Diluted 10,453  9,480  9,442  9,926  10,197  
Balance Sheet Data: 
     Office and parking investments, net of 
          depreciation $728,695  $706,551  $795,860  $596,109  $625,365  
     Real estate equity securities -  -  -  23,281  -  
     Total assets 802,308  763,937  840,612  655,237  649,369  
     Notes payable to banks 110,075  141,970  126,044  81,882  86,640  
     Mortgage notes payable 247,190  209,746  304,985  225,470  214,736  
     Total liabilities 394,328  387,116  465,031  329,488  328,305  
     Preferred stock 57,976  66,250  66,250  66,250  66,250  
     Convertible preferred stock 68,000  75,000  75,000  -  -  
     Stockholders' equity 407,980  376,821  375,581  325,749  321,064  
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BUSINESS 

General Development of Business 

Overview 

       Parkway Properties, Inc. ("Parkway" or the "Company") is a real estate investment trust ("REIT") specializing in the operations, acquisition, 
ownership, management, and leasing of office properties. The Company is self-administered, in that it provides its own investment and 
administrative services internally through its own employees. The Company is also self-managed, as it internally provides the management, 
maintenance and other real estate services that its properties require through its own employees, such as property managers and engineers and 
in some cases, leasing professionals. The Company is geographically focused on the Southeastern and Southwestern United States and 
Chicago. Parkway and its predecessors have been public companies engaged in the real estate business since 1971, and its present senior 
management has been with Parkway since the 1980's. The management team has had experience managing a public real estate company
through all phases of the real estate business cycle. At March 1, 2004, Parkway owned or had an interest in 59 office properties located in 
eleven states with an aggregate of approximately 10.7 million square feet of leasable space. 

       Parkway evaluates individual office assets for purchase considering a number of factors such as current market rents, vacancy rates and 
capitalization rates. As part of this strategy, since July 1995, the Company has (i) completed the acquisition of 67 office properties, 
encompassing 11.5 million net rentable square feet, for a total purchase price of $1.1 billion; (ii) sold or is in the process of selling all of its non-
core assets; (iii) sold 12 office properties, encompassing approximately 1.3 million net rentable square feet primarily in markets that posed 
increasing risks and redeployed these funds; (iv) sold joint venture interests in four office properties encompassing 1.7 million net rentable 
square feet; and (v) implemented self-management and self-leasing at most of its properties to promote a focus on customer retention and 
superior service in meeting the needs of its customers. Parkway defines total investment in office properties as purchase price plus estimated 
closing costs and anticipated capital expenditures during the first 24 months of ownership for tenant improvements, commissions, upgrades 
and capital improvements to bring the building up to the Company's standards. 

Self-Management and Third Party Management 

       The Company self-manages approximately 99.3% of its current portfolio on a net rentable square footage basis. In addition, the Company 
implemented self-leasing for renewals and currently self-leases approximately 68.0% of its portfolio on a net rentable square footage basis. For 
new tenant leasing, which is a smaller portion of our business, we fully cooperate with the third party brokerage community. The Company 
benefits from a fully integrated management infrastructure, provided by its wholly-owned management subsidiary, Parkway Realty Services LLC 
("Parkway Realty"). The Company believes self-management results in better customer service, higher customer retention and allows the 
Company to enhance stockholder value through the application of its hands-on operating style. The Company believes that its focus on 
customer retention will benefit the Company and its stockholders by maintaining a stabilized revenue stream and avoiding higher capital 
expenditures and leasing commissions associated with new leases. In order to self-manage properties, the Company seeks to reach critical 
mass in terms of square footage. Critical mass varies from market to market and is generally defined by the Company as owning or managing a 
minimum of 250,000 square feet. The Company is considering the sale of its properties that are not self-managed because the inability to 
self-manage these properties limits the Company's ability to apply its hands-on operating strategy. In addition to its owned properties, Parkway 
Realty currently manages and/or leases approximately 3 million net rentable square feet for third-party owners (including joint venture 
interests). The Company intends to expand its third party fee business. 

       In addition to direct real estate acquisitions, Parkway's investment strategy includes the consummation of business combination 
transactions with other public real estate and financial companies which Parkway deems to be undervalued. In evaluating a company to 
determine if it is undervalued, Parkway traditionally looks at the value the public market is placing on its assets versus what value the private 
market would pay for those same assets. Our preference is for office companies or those with a strong office component. We then pursue 
these acquisitions by acquiring common stock, which is typically listed on one of the major national stock exchanges. Since 1979, Parkway has
completed eight such business combinations. Management may pursue similar business combination transactions on a selected basis in order 
to enhance stockholder value.  

Joint Ventures 

       Parkway intends to continue forming joint ventures or partnerships with select investors. During 2000, the Company formed a venture 
partnership with a division of Investcorp International, Inc. (“Investcorp”) for the purposes of acquiring Central Business District (downtown) 
assets in the Southeastern and Southwestern United States and Chicago. Under the terms of the joint venture agreement, Parkway will 
operate, manage, and lease the properties on a day-to-day basis, provide acquisition and construction management services to the joint 
venture, and receive fees for providing these services. The joint venture will arrange first mortgage financing which will approximate 70% of the 
value of each office asset purchased. This debt will be non-recourse, property specific debt. Investcorp will provide 70 to 75% of the joint 
venture capital with Parkway to provide the balance, with distributions being made pro rata.  

       To date, Parkway has entered into two joint venture agreements with Investcorp with respect to the 233 North Michigan building in 
Chicago, in 2002 and the Viad Corporate Center (“Viad Joint Venture”) in Phoenix in 2003. On March 6, 2003, Parkway sold a 70% interest 
in the Viad Corporate Center, a 482,000 square foot office building in Phoenix for a total of $42 million. Parkway continues to provide 
management and leasing services for the building on a day-to-day basis. In connection with the sale, Parkway recognized a $175,000 
acquisition fee in accordance with the terms of the joint venture agreement. The Company recorded a gain on the sale of the 70% joint venture 
interest of $1.1 million. 
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       Simultaneous with closing the Viad Joint Venture, the partnership that owns the property closed a $42.5 million mortgage on the building. 
The non-recourse first mortgage is interest-only for a term of two years with three one-year extension options. The mortgage bears interest at 
LIBOR plus 260 basis points. For $15.5 million of the loan, LIBOR can not be lower than 2.25%. At December 31, 2003, the weighted average 
interest rate on the mortgage was 4.16%. Parkway received net cash proceeds from the sale and the financing of $54.3 million. The proceeds 
were used to reduce amounts outstanding on the Company’s lines of credit, pending reinvestment in new properties. The Viad Joint Venture is 
accounted for using the equity method of accounting. The Company’s pro rata share of debt from the joint venture is included in the 
calculation of the ratio of debt to total market capitalization. 

On May 28, 2003, Parkway sold an 80% interest in two suburban Jackson, Mississippi properties, River Oaks Place and the IBM Building, to 
approximately 35 individual investors (“Jackson Joint Venture”). The sale values the properties at $16.7 million. The IBM Building and River 
Oaks Plaza comprise approximately 170,000 square feet located in two submarkets. Parkway continues to manage and lease the properties for 
a market-based fee and retained a 20% ownership interest in the entity that owns the buildings. The Company recorded a gain on the sale of 
the 80% joint venture interest of $4.2 million.  

       Simultaneous with closing the Jackson Joint Venture, the entity that owns the properties closed an $11.525 million non-recourse first 
mortgage secured by the properties. The mortgage has a fixed interest rate of 5.84%, amortizes over 28 years and matures in ten years. Parkway 
received net cash proceeds from the sale and the financing of approximately $15.5 million, which was used to reduce borrowings under the 
Company's short-term lines of credit pending the reinvestment in new properties. The Jackson Joint Venture is accounted for using the equity 
method of accounting. The Company’s pro rata share of debt from the joint venture is included in the calculation of the ratio of debt to total 
market capitalization. 

Recent Developments 

       On January 29, 2004, Parkway purchased Maitland 200, a 206,000 square foot, four-story office building located in the Maitland Center 
submarket of Orlando, Florida for $26.3 million plus $1.4 million in closing costs and anticipated capital expenditures and leasing commissions 
during the first two years of ownership. The purchase was funded with the Company’s lines of credit and represents the reinvestment of 
proceeds from sale of properties through joint ventures during 2003.  

The Company has completed its due diligence for the $76.3 million acquisition of the 410,000 square foot, 92% leased Capital City Plaza in the 
Buckhead sub-market of Atlanta, Georgia. Parkway’s request to assume an existing first mortgage in the amount of $43 million is under review by the 
lender. The proposed acquisition, which is projected for late March 2004, is subject to customary closing conditions, and there can be no assurance 
that this acquisition will occur. 

On February 6, 2004, Parkway entered into a new three-year $170 million unsecured line of credit led by Wachovia Bank and syndicated to ten 
other banks. The interest rate on the line is equal to the 30-day LIBOR rate plus 100 to 132.5 basis points (currently 117.5 basis points), depending upon 
overall Company leverage. The new line replaces the line of credit with JP Morgan Chase Bank in the amount of $135,000,000, which was 
scheduled to mature June 2004. The new line with Wachovia affords the Company greater financial flexibility at a lower interest cost.  

Effective February 24, 2004, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement with a notional amount of $60 million which 
fixed the 30-day LIBOR interest rate at 1.293%, which equates to a current interest rate of 2.468%. The agreement matures December 31, 
2004. 

Operating Properties 

Parkway generally seeks to acquire well-located Class A, A- or B+ (as classified within their respective markets) multi-story office buildings 
which are located in primary or secondary markets in the Southeastern and Southwestern United States and Chicago, ranging in size from 
100,000 to 1,500,000 net rentable square feet and which have current and projected occupancy levels in excess of 70% and adequate parking 
to accommodate full occupancy. Office properties are designated Class A, A- or B+ based on a combination of factors including rent, building 
finishes, system standards and efficiency, building amenities, location/accessibility and market perception. Class A properties represent the 
most prestigious buildings competing for premier office users with rents above average for the area. These buildings generally have high quality 
standard finishes, state of the art systems, exceptional accessibility and a definite market presence. Class B office buildings compete for a wide 
range of users with rents in the average range for the area. Building finishes are fair to good for the area and systems are adequate, but the 
building does not compete with Class A at the same price. The Company targets buildings which are occupied by a major tenant (or tenants) 
(e.g., a tenant that accounts for at least 30% of the building's total rental revenue and has at least five years remaining on its lease). Parkway's 
focus on new property acquisitions will be on higher barrier-to-entry sub-markets in both central business districts and suburban markets. 
Parkway strives to purchase office buildings at minimum initial unleveraged annual yields on its total investment of 8.5%. The Company defines 
initial unleveraged yield as net operating income ("NOI") divided by total investment (as previously defined), where NOI represents budgeted 
cash operating income for the current year at current occupancy rates and at rental rates currently in place with no adjustments for anticipated 
expense savings, increases in rental rates, additional leasing or straight line rent. Leases that expire during the year are assumed to renew at 
market rates unless interviews with tenants during pre-purchase due diligence indicate a likelihood that a tenant will not renew. In markets 
where the Company self-manages its properties, NOI also includes the net management fee expected to be earned during the year. The 
Company also generally seeks to acquire properties whose total investment per net rentable square foot is at least 20% below estimated 
replacement cost. While the Company seeks to acquire properties which meet all of the acquisition criteria, specific property acquisitions are 
evaluated individually and may fail to meet one or more of the acquisition criteria at the date of purchase. Since January 1, 2003, the Company 
has acquired five office properties with approximately 1.3 million net rentable square feet for a total purchase price of $151 million, or 
approximately $117 per net rentable square foot. The properties purchased are located in the central business district in Orlando, and suburban 
markets in Atlanta, Houston and Charlotte. Consistent with the qualification requirements of a REIT, the Company intends to hold and 
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operate its portfolio of office buildings for investment purposes, but may determine to sell properties that no longer meet its investment 
criteria. 

Stock Repurchase Plan 

The Company has been engaged in the purchase of its outstanding common stock since June 1998. Given the fluctuations in price of the 
Company's public equity without a corresponding change in valuation of the underlying real estate assets, the Company believes a well-
executed repurchase program can add significant stockholder value. During 2003, the Company repurchased 10,830 shares of its common 
stock at an average cost of $33.76 per share. Since June 1998, the Company has purchased a total of 2,152,423 shares of its common stock, 
which represents approximately 19.4% of the Company stock outstanding when the buyback program was initiated on June 30, 1998. When 
considering repurchasing shares, the Company evaluates the following items:  impact on the Company's Value2 Plan, discount to net asset 
value; implied capitalization rate; implied value per square foot; impact on liquidity of common stock; and other investment alternatives that 
are available with a similar risk profile (capital allocation). 

Management Team 

       Parkway's management team consists of experienced office property specialists with proven capabilities in office property (i) operations; 
(ii) leasing; (iii) management; (iv) acquisition/disposition; (v) financing; (vi) capital allocation; and (vii) re-positioning. In 2003 Parkway made 
some important leadership changes to further support the strategy of the Company. Tom Maloney was promoted to Chief Operating Officer 
with the goal to focus on and improve real estate operations. Jim Ingram was promoted to Chief Investment Officer and is in charge of 
Parkway’s capital allocation and recycling. Parkway's ten senior officers have an average of over 21 years of real estate industry experience, and 
have worked together at Parkway for an average of over 14 years. Management has developed a highly service-oriented operating culture and 
believes that its focus on operations, proactive leasing, property management and asset management activities will result in higher customer 
retention and occupancy and will continue to translate into enhanced stockholder value. 

Financing Strategy 

       The Company expects to continue seeking fixed rate, non-recourse mortgage financing with maturities from five to ten years typically 
amortizing over 25 to 30 years on select office building investments as additional capital is needed. The Company targets a debt to total 
market capitalization rate at a percentage in the mid-40’s. This rate may vary at times pending acquisitions, sales and/or equity offerings. In 
addition, volatility in the price of the Company's common stock may affect the debt to total market capitalization ratio. However, over time the 
Company plans to maintain a percentage in the mid-40’s. The Company monitors interest and fixed charge coverage ratios. See Item 7. 
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Financial Condition."  Parkway has no present plans 
to issue senior securities. Should the opportunity present itself, Parkway has the ability to issue common stock periodically through its dividend 
reinvestment plan. 

       Parkway may, in appropriate circumstances, acquire one or more properties in exchange for Parkway's equity securities. Parkway may provide 
financing in connection with sales of property if market conditions so require, but it does not presently intend to make other loans. Parkway has 
no set policy as to the amount or percentage of its assets which may be invested in any specific property. Rather than a specific policy, Parkway 
evaluates each property in terms of whether and to what extent the property meets Parkway's investment criteria and strategic objectives. 
Parkway has no present intentions of underwriting securities of other issuers. The strategies and policies set forth above were determined, and 
are subject to review by, Parkway's Board of Directors which may change such strategies or policies based upon their evaluation of the state of 
the real estate market, the performance of Parkway's assets, capital and credit market conditions, and other relevant factors. Parkway provides
annual reports to its stockholders that contain financial statements audited by Parkway's independent public accountants. 

Dispositions 

       Parkway has also pursued a strategy of liquidating its non-core assets and office building investments that no longer meet the Company's 
investment criteria and/or the Company has determined value will be maximized by selling and redeploying the proceeds. The Company 
routinely evaluates changes in market conditions that indicate an opportunity or need to sell properties within those markets in order to 
maximize shareholder value and allocate capital judiciously. 

       Since January 1, 1995, Parkway has sold non-core assets with a book value of approximately $45 million for approximately $68 million, 
resulting in an aggregate gain for financial reporting purposes of approximately $23 million. The book value of all remaining non-office building 
real estate assets and mortgage loans, all of which are for sale, was approximately $4.4 million as of December 31, 2003. 

Since January 1, 1998, the Company has sold 12 office properties, encompassing approximately 1.3 million net rentable square feet for net 
proceeds of $128 million, resulting in aggregate gains for financial reporting purposes of $18 million. In 2003, the Company sold its investment 
in the BB&T Financial Center in Winston-Salem, North Carolina for $27.5 million plus the assumption of future tenant improvements of 
approximately $500,000. Parkway Realty Services continues to manage and lease the property under a ten-year management agreement and 
recognized an acquisition fee of $186,000. The Company recorded a gain on this sale of $5,020,000. The taxable gain from this sale was 
deferred through a Section 1031 like-kind exchange and accordingly, no special dividend of capital gain was required. Currently, the Company is 
also considering the sale of its property in Greenville, South Carolina, primarily because the Company does not own sufficient office space in 
this market to justify self-management and self-leasing. This investment decision will be based upon the Company's analysis of existing markets 
and competing investment opportunities. 
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Administration 

       The Company is self-administered and self-managed and maintains its principal executive offices in Jackson, Mississippi. As of March 1,
2004, the Company had 236 employees. 

       The operations of the Company are conducted from approximately 13,000 square feet of office space located at 188 East Capitol Street, 
One Jackson Place, Suite 1000, Jackson, Mississippi. The building is owned by Parkway and is leased by Parkway at market rental rates. 
Parkway’s website is located at www.pky.com. On the website, you can obtain a copy of the Company’s annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly 
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of 
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as soon as reasonably practicable after Parkway electronically files such material with, or 
furnishes it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). 

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics 

Parkway has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all employees of the Company. A copy of this code is available 
on Parkway’s website at www.pky.com and the Company intends to disclose on this website any amendment to, or waiver of, any provision of 
this Code applicable to our directors and executive officers that would otherwise be required to be disclosed under the rules of the SEC or the 
New York Stock Exchange. A copy of this Code is also available in print to any stockholder upon written request addressed to Investor 
Relations, Parkway Properties, Inc., One Jackson Place Suite 1000, 188 East Capitol Street, Jackson, Mississippi 39201-2195. 

PROPERTIES 

General 

       The Company operates and invests principally in office properties in the Southeastern and Southwestern United States and Chicago, but is 
not limited to any specific geographical region or property type. As of March 1, 2004, the Company owned or had an interest in 59 office 
properties comprising approximately 10.7 million square feet of office space located in eleven states. 

In addition, the Company has an investment in the Toyota Center, formerly known as the Moore Building, which is a historic renovation 
adjacent to the Triple-A baseball stadium complex in downtown Memphis. The Toyota Center was originally constructed in 1913 and consists 
of approximately 174,000 rentable square feet. The Company constructed a multi-level, 770-space parking garage to accommodate the 
building and stadium parking needs. This building is owned by Moore Building Associates LP (the "Partnership") and an institutional investor, 
Banc of America Historic Ventures, LLC ("BOA") with the Company's ownership interest being less than 1%. At December 31, 2003, the note 
receivable from the Partnership totaled $5,926,000. 

       Property acquisitions in 2003, 2002 and 2001 were funded through a variety of sources, including: 

a. Cash reserves and cash generated from operating activities, 

b. Sales of non-core assets, 

c. Sales of office properties, 

d. Sales of joint venture interests, 

e. Sales of investments in equity securities of other REITs, 

f. Fixed rate, non-recourse mortgage financing with maturities ranging from five to ten years, 

g. Assumption of existing fixed rate, non-recourse mortgages on properties purchased, 

h. Sales of Parkway preferred and common stock, and 

i. Advances on bank lines of credit. 

Office Buildings 

       Other than as discussed under "Business", the Company intends to hold and operate its portfolio of office buildings for investment 
purposes. The Company does not propose any program for the renovation, improvement or development of any of the office buildings, except 
as called for under the renewal of existing leases or the signing of new leases or improvements necessary to upgrade recent acquisitions to the 
Company's operating standards. All such improvements are expected to be financed by cash flow from the portfolio of office properties and 
advances on bank lines of credit. In 2004, the Company will develop a $6.5 million, 500 space parking facility to accommodate building 
customers at the City Centre in Jackson, Mississippi.  

       In the opinion of management, all properties are adequately covered by insurance. This is an area to which management has devoted a great 
deal of time and attention following the unfortunate events of September 11, 2001. 

{  13 }



       All office building investments compete for customers with similar properties located within the same market primarily on the basis of 
location, rent charged, services provided and the design and condition of the improvements. The Company also competes with other REITs, 
financial institutions, pension funds, partnerships, individual investors and others when attempting to acquire office properties. 

       The following table sets forth certain information about office properties the Company owned or had an interest in as of January 1, 2004: 

Estimated 
Average % of 

Number Total Net % of Average Market Leases % 
Of Rentable Total Net Rent Per Rent Per Expiring Leased 

Office Square Feet Rentable Square Square In As of 
Location Properties(1) (in thousands) Feet Foot (2) Foot (3) 2004 (4) 1/1/2004 

Houston, TX 15 2,238 21.4% $18.62 $17.36 11.9% 89.5% 
Chicago, IL 1 1,070 10.2% 32.99 31.53 1.4% 91.3% 
Atlanta, GA 8 969 9.2% 18.99 17.73 10.9% 88.3% 
Columbia, SC 3 872 8.3% 16.53 16.65 10.3% 89.6% 
Jackson, MS 5 841 8.0% 17.75 17.41 2.9% 70.9% 
Memphis, TN 3 672 6.4% 17.79 16.14 15.9% 88.9% 
Phoenix, AZ 2 583 5.6% 24.07 19.42 4.5% 90.7% 
Knoxville, TN 2 534 5.1% 15.16 16.00 18.0% 93.0% 
Charlotte, NC 2 510 4.9% 17.48 17.38 31.3% 93.3% 
Richmond, VA 6 497 4.7% 16.75 15.88 21.9% 89.3% 
Nashville, TN 1 428 4.1% 15.21 16.00 7.9% 82.9% 
Chesapeake, VA 3 387 3.7% 18.62 17.36 19.0% 76.1% 
St. Petersburg, FL 2 323 3.1% 17.37 17.22 4.3% 94.6% 
Orlando, FL 1 258 2.5% 21.54 21.00 6.3% 94.2% 
Ft. Lauderdale, FL 2 215 2.0% 21.81 20.34 17.4% 94.8% 
All Others 2 80 0.8% 11.56 9.92 0.0% 62.4% 

58 10,477 100.0% $19.76 $18.74 11.2% 87.9% 

(1)    Includes 53 office properties owned directly; a 32,000 square foot office property in which the Company owns a 50% interest located in 
New Orleans, Louisiana; a 1,068,000 square foot office property in which the Company owns a 30% interest located in Chicago, Illinois; a 
482,000 square foot office property in which the Company owns a 30% interest located in Phoenix, Arizona; and two office properties totaling 
170,000 square feet in which the Company owns a 20% interest located in Jackson, Mississippi. 

(2) Average rent per square foot is defined as the weighted average current gross rental rate including expense escalations for leased office 
space in the building as of January 1, 2004. 

(3) Estimated average market rent per square foot is based upon information obtained from (i) the Company's own experience in leasing 
space at the properties; (ii) leasing agents in the relevant markets with respect to quoted rental rates and completed leasing transactions for 
comparable properties in the relevant markets; and (iii) publicly available data with respect thereto. Estimated average market rent is weighted 
by the net rentable square feet expiring in each property. 

(4) The percentage of leases expiring in 2004 represents the ratio of square feet under leases expiring in 2004 divided by total net rentable 
square feet. 

       The following table sets forth scheduled lease expirations for properties owned as of January 1, 2004 for leases executed as of January 1, 
2004, assuming no customer exercises renewal options: 

Net Annualized Weighted  Weighted Est 
Rentable Percent of Rental Expiring Gross Avg Market 

Year of Number Square Feet Total Net Amount Rental Rate Per Rent Per Net 
Lease of Expiring Rentable Expiring (1) Net Rentable Rentable 

Expiration Leases (in thousands) Square Feet (in thousands) Square Foot (2) Square Foot (3) 
2004 291 1,174 11.2% $  21,228 $18.08 $16.87 
2005 266 1,767 16.9% 33,263 18.82 17.60 
2006 191 1,067 10.2% 21,132 19.82 18.11 
2007 141 946 9.0% 17,578 18.58 17.08 
2008 140 1,197 11.4%   21,357 17.84 17.56 

Thereafter 134 3,058 29.2% 67,401 22.04 21.30 
1,163 9,209 87.9% $181,959 $19.76 $18.74 

(1)    Annualized rental amount expiring is defined as net rentable square feet expiring multiplied by the weighted average expiring annual rental 
rate per net rentable square foot. 

(2)    Weighted average expiring gross rental rate is the weighted average rental rate including expense escalations for office space. 
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(3) Estimated average market rent is based upon information obtained from (i) the Company's own experience in leasing space at the 
properties: (ii) leasing agents in the relevant markets with respect to quoted rental rates and completed leasing transactions for comparable 
properties in the relevant markets; and (iii) publicly available data with respect thereto. Estimated average market rent is weighted by the net 
rentable square feet expiring in each property. 

       Fixed-rate mortgage notes payable total $247,190,000 at December 31, 2003 and are secured by 30 properties in various markets with 
interest rates ranging from 4.83% to 8.375%. Maturity dates on these mortgage notes payable range from July 2006 to October 2019 on 14 to
30 year amortizations. See Note E to the consolidated financial statements. 

       The majority of the Company's fixed rate secured debt contains prepayment provisions based on the greater of a yield maintenance penalty 
or 1.0% of the outstanding loan amount. The yield maintenance penalty essentially compensates the lender for the difference between the 
fixed rate under the loan and the yield that the lender would receive if the lender reinvested the prepaid loan balance in U.S. Treasury 
Securities with a similar maturity as the loan. 

Customers 

       The office properties are leased to approximately 1,163 customers, which are in a wide variety of industries including government agencies, 
banking, professional services (including legal, accounting, and consulting), energy, financial services and telecommunications. The following 
table sets forth information concerning the 25 largest customers of the properties owned directly or through joint ventures as of January 1, 
2004 (in thousands, except square foot data): 

Annualized Lease 
 Square Rental Expiration

Customer Feet Revenue (1) Office Property Date 
Government Services Administration (GSA) 357,552 $  4,798 (2) (2) 
Regions Financial Corporation 198,441 4,021 Morgan Keegan Tower 09/07 
South Carolina State Government 229,618 3,969 Capitol Center (3) 
Nabors Industries/Nabors Corporate Services 170,627 3,560 One Commerce Green 12/05 
Cox Enterprises 182,118 3,516 (4) (4) 
Bank of America, NA 274,316 3,366 (5) (5) 
Schlumberger Technology 155,324 2,780 Schlumberger (6) 
Honeywell 142,464 2,658 Honeywell Building 07/08 
Progress Energy 133,279 2,390 Central Station (7) 
Boult, Cummings, Conners, & Berry, PLLC 98,813 2,189 Bank of America Plaza (8) 
Lynk Systems, Inc. 105,664 1,977 Falls Pointe 12/09 
Akerman, Senterfitt & Eidson, PA 85,165 1,943 Citrus Center (9) 
DHL Airways 98,649 1,914 One Commerce Green 11/05 
PGS Tensor Geophysical, Inc. 91,960 1,771 Tensor Building 03/05 
MeadWestvaco Corporation 100,457 1,766 Westvaco Building 01/06 
First Tennessee Bank, NA 101,671 1,680 First Tennessee Plaza (10) 
Forman, Perry, Watkins, Krutz & Tardy 78,171 1,550 (11) (11) 
United Healthcare Services 169,308 1,513 (12) (12) 
Facility Holdings Corp. 82,444 1,510 Lakewood II 12/16 
The Travelers Indemnity Co. 89,934 1,427 (13) (13) 
Viad Corporation 158,222 1,420 Viad Corporate Center (14) 
UBS Warburg 72,289 1,355 (15) (15) 
Young & Rubicam 122,078 1,268 233 North Michigan (16) 
Lennar Homes of Texas 55,643 1,111 550 Greens Parkway 10/09 
Federal Express 56,866 1,022 (17) (17) 

3,411,073     $56,474 

Total Rental Square Footage (1) 10,477,169  

Total Annualized Rental Revenue (1) $149,535  

(1) Annualized Rental Revenue represents the gross rental rate (including escalations) per square foot as of January 1, 2004, multiplied by the 
number of square feet leased by the customer. Annualized rent for customers in unconsolidated joint ventures is calculated based on Parkway’s 
ownership interest. However, leased square feet represents 100% of square feet leased through direct ownership or through joint ventures. 
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(2)    GSA leases 357,552 square feet in 12 properties under separate leases that expire as follows: 

Lease 
 Square Expiration 

Office Property Feet Date 

233 North Michigan 189,316 11/09* 
Moorefield I and II 22,810 06/05 
One Jackson Place 22,734 07/10 
First Tennessee Plaza 22,069 03/08 
Carmel Crossing 21,384 05/10 
Carmel Crossing 20,618 09/12 
Falls Building 20,051 01/13 
Greenbrier II 13,971 01/10 
Morgan Keegan Tower 8,603 06/13 
City Centre 5,471 10/12 
Moorefield III 5,370 03/04 
Town Point Center 5,155 11/11 

357,552  

*Cancellation option in 11/06, limited to 33,609 square feet. 

(3)    South Carolina State Government Agencies lease 229,618 square feet and the leases expire as follows: 

Lease 
 Square Expiration

Office Property Feet Date 
Capitol Center 159,303 06/05* 
Capitol Center 60,005 06/09 
Capitol Center 10,310 08/04 

229,618  

*Cancellation option available every June 30th. 

(4)    Cox Enterprises, Inc. leases 182,118 square feet and the leases expire as follows: 

Lease 
 Square Expiration 

Office Property Feet Date 
Peachtree Dunwoody Pavilion 96,757 08/10 
Peachtree Dunwoody Pavilion 66,425 12/08 
Moorefield I 18,936 06/10 

182,118  

(5) Bank of America, NA leases 274,316 square feet in two properties under separate leases that expire as follows:  180,530 square feet in 
March 2012 at Bank of America Plaza in Nashville, TN and 93,786 square feet in June 2006 at Bank of America Tower in Columbia, SC. 

(6)    Schlumberger Technology leases 155,324 square feet expiring in April 2007 with a cancellation option beginning May 1, 2003. 

(7) Progress Energy leases 133,279 square feet expiring in May 2013. This lease provides a cancellation option on May 31, 2008, which the customer 
has exercised. 

(8) Boult, Cummings, Conners & Berry, PLLC leases 98,813 square feet expiring as follows:  79,086 square feet in May 2009 and 19,727 square 
feet in May 2004. The lease contains a cancellation option in each of the first three years following June 1, 2004. 

(9) Akerman, Senterfitt & Edison, PA leases 85,165 square feet expiring as follows:  67,979 square feet in December 2005 and 17,186 square feet in
March 2008.  

(10)    First Tennessee Bank leases 101,671 square feet expiring in September 2014. The lease contains two, one-time contraction options in October 
2006 and October 2008 for approximately 15,000 square feet each.  

(11) Forman, Perry, Watkins, Krutz & Tardy (“FPWKT”) leases 78,171 square feet expiring as follows:  69,341 square feet in December 2008 in One 
Jackson Place and 8,830 square feet in July 2009 in 1717 St. James. Subsequent to January 1, 2004, FPWKT signed a lease for 145,000 square feet in 
City Centre commencing upon completion of the improvements to the space in the third quarter of 2004. FPWKT will occupy the space through 
December 31, 2011, subject to certain termination rights beginning July 31, 2008. The firm is consolidating employees from two buildings in Jackson, 
Mississippi and will vacate 69,341 square feet in One Jackson Place. 
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(12)    United Healthcare Services leases 169,308 square feet expiring as follows:  167,673 square feet in November 2009 in 233 North Michigan with 
a cancellation option between December 2004 and June 2005; and 1,635 square feet in December 2006 in Cedar Ridge. Subsequent to January 1, 
2004, United Healthcare amended its lease at 233 North Michigan reducing the leased square feet to 134,159 and removing the cancellation option. 

(13) The Travelers Indemnity Co. leases 89,934 square feet expiring as follows:  77,504 square feet in June 2008 in Carmel Crossing and 12,430 
square feet in October 2005 in Peachtree Dunwoody Pavilion.  

(14) Viad Corporation leases 158,222 square feet in the Viad Corporate Center under separate leases that expire as follows:  156,364 square 
feet in August 2011 and 1,858 square feet in April 2005. 

(15)    UBS Warburg leases 72,289 square feet in five properties and the leases expire as follows: 

Lease 
 Square Expiration 

Office Property Feet Date 
Forum II & III 15,320 01/07 
Comerica Bank Building 15,317 11/04 
Southtrust Bank Building 12,706 09/13 
IBM Building 10,401 07/09 
IBM Building 9,355 01/11 
First Tennessee Plaza 9,190 03/04 

72,289  

(16)    Young & Rubicam leases 122,078 square feet expiring in November 2011 with a cancellation option in November 2004. 

(17)    Federal Express leases 56,866 square feet in four properties and the leases expire as follows: 

Lease 
 Square Expiration 

Office Property Feet Date 
Forum II & III 53,774 09/08 
Morgan Keegan Tower 1,380 08/08 
First Tennessee Plaza 950 04/04 
City Centre 762 12/06 

56,866  

Non-Core Assets 

       Since January 1, 1995, Parkway has pursued a strategy of liquidating its non-core assets and using the proceeds from such sales to acquire 
office properties, pay down short-term debt and repurchase its own stock. The Company defines non-core assets as all assets other than office 
and parking properties, which at December 31, 2003 consisted of land and mortgage loans. The book value of all remaining non-office building 
real estate assets and mortgage loans, all of which are for sale, was $4,389,000 as of December 31, 2003. Of this amount, $3,528,000 
represents undeveloped land with a carrying cost of approximately $37,000 annually. 

MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES  

       The Company's common stock ($.001 par value) is listed and trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "PKY". The 
number of record holders of the Company's common stock at March 1, 2004, was approximately 2,875. 

As of March 8, 2004, the last reported sales price per common share on the New York Stock Exchange was $47.50. The following table 
sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low last reported sales prices per share of the Company's common stock and the per share 
cash distributions paid by Parkway during each quarter. 

Year Ended Year Ended 
December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002 

Quarter Ended     High Low Distributions     High Low Distributions 
March 31 $37.80 $33.37 $  .65 $36.50 $32.05 $  .63 
June 30 42.05 37.85 .65 38.25 35.37 .63 
September 30 45.22 42.53 .65 37.34 29.93 .65 
December 31 45.30 41.30 .65 36.39 31.51 .65 

$2.60 $2.56 
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       Common stock distributions during 2003 and 2002 ($2.60 and $2.56 per share, respectively) were taxable as follows for federal income 
tax purposes: 

 Year Ended 
 December 31 
 2003 2002 
Ordinary income $2.32 $2.52 
Post May 5, 2003 capital gain .16 - 
Unrecaptured Section 1250 gain .12 .04 

$2.60 $2.56 

On March 24, 2003, the Company sold 690,000 shares of common stock in a public offering in which Wachovia Securities was the 
underwriter for net proceeds of $24.3 million or $35.25 per share. The proceeds were used to purchase Peachtree Dunwoody Pavilion and the 
Wells Fargo Building in the third quarter of 2003. 

       Additionally, through the Company’s Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan (“DRIP Plan”), 182,033 common shares were sold 
during 2003. Net proceeds received on the issuance of shares were $7,799,000, which equates to an average net price per share of $42.85 at 
a discount of 2.1%. The proceeds were used to reduce amounts outstanding under the Company’s short-term lines of credit. 

On June 30, 2003, the Company redeemed all 2,650,000 shares of its 8.75% Series A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock at a 
redemption price of $25 per share or $66.25 million. The Series A Preferred Stock was previously listed for trading on the New York Stock 
Exchange under the symbol “PKY PrA”, but is no longer outstanding. All 2,760,000 authorized shares of Series A Preferred Stock have been 
reclassified back into common stock. The redemption was funded from proceeds of the Company’s June 2003 issuance of Series D Preferred 
Stock along with a portion of the proceeds from the Company’s March 2003 issuance of common stock. In connection with the redemption of 
the Series A Preferred Stock, a $2,619,000 non-cash adjustment for original issue costs was recorded in the second quarter of 2003.  

       On June 27, 2003, the Company completed the sale of 2,400,000 shares of 8.00% Series D Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock 
with net proceeds to the Company of approximately $58 million. The proceeds were used to redeem the Company’s 8.75% Series A 
Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock. The Series D Preferred Stock has a $25 liquidation value per share and will be redeemable at the 
option of the Company on or after June 27, 2008. The Company’s shares of Series D preferred stock are listed on the New York Stock 
Exchange and trade under the symbol “PKY PrD”.  

The following table shows the high and low Series D preferred share prices and per share distributions paid for each quarter of 2003 reported 
by the New York Stock Exchange. 

 Year Ended 
December 31, 2003 

Quarter Ended High Low Distributions
March 31 $       - $       - $      - 
June 30 26.60 26.60 .02 
September 30 27.00 25.75 .50 
December 31 26.75 25.98 .50 

$1.02 

As of March 1, 2004, there were approximately 4 holders of record of the Company's 2,400,000 outstanding shares of Series D preferred 
stock. Series A and Series D preferred stock distributions during 2003 and 2002 were taxable as follows for federal income tax purposes: 

Year Ended December 31 
Series A Series D 

2003 2002 2003 2002 
Ordinary income $  .81 $2.15 $1.01 $    - 
Post May 5, 2003 capital gain .11 - .01 - 
Unrecaptured Section 1250 gain .08 .04 - - 

$1.00 $2.19 $1.02 $    - 

      In 2001, the Company issued 2,142,857 shares of 8.34% Series B Cumulative Convertible Preferred stock to Rothschild/Five Arrows. In 
addition to the issuance of Series B preferred stock, Parkway issued a warrant to Five Arrows to purchase 75,000 shares of the Company’s 
common stock at a price of $35 for a period of seven years. During 2003, 200,000 shares of Series B preferred stock were converted into 
200,000 shares of Parkway common stock. As of December 31, 2003, there were 1,942,857 shares of Series B preferred stock outstanding. 
Dividends of $6,091,000 and $6,257,000 were declared on the stock in 2003 and 2002, respectively. There is no public market for
Parkway’s Series B Cumulative Convertible Preferred stock.  
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Equity Compensation Plans 

       The following table sets forth the securities authorized for issuance under Parkway's equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2003: 

 (a) (b) (c) 
Number of securities 

remaining available for 
future issuance under 

Number of securities to Weighted-average equity compensation 
be issued upon exercise exercise price of plans (excluding 
of outstanding options, outstanding options, securities reflected in 

Plan category warrants and rights warrants and rights column (a) 
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders 726,658 $30.02 286,754 
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders - - - 
Total 726,658 $30.02 286,754 

       Effective January 1, 2003, the stockholders of the Company approved Parkway’s 2003 Equity Incentive Plan that authorized the grant of up 
to 200,000 equity based awards to employees of the Company. At present, it is Parkway’s intention to grant restricted stock and/or deferred 
incentive share units instead of stock options to employees of the Company, although the 2003 Plan authorizes various forms of incentive 
awards, including options. The Compensation Committee approved the issuance of 142,000 shares of incentive restricted stock to certain 
officers of the Company in connection with the Value2 plan. The restricted shares issued in 2003 are valued at $5,092,000, and vest at the 
end of 7 years or December 31, 2005 if certain goals of the Value2 plan are achieved. Additionally, 5,246 deferred incentive share units were 
granted to employees of the Company in 2003. The deferred incentive share units are valued at $235,000, and vest at the end of 4 years. 
Compensation expense related to the restricted stock and deferred incentive share units of $694,000 was recognized in 2003. 

Purchases of Equity Securities 

(c) Total Number of (d) Maximum Number 
(a) Total Number Shares (or Units) of Shares (or Units)

of Shares (b) Average Price Purchased as Part of That May Yet Be 
(or Units) Paid Per Share Publicly Announced Purchased Under the 

Period Purchased (or Unit) Plans or Programs Plans or Programs 
02/07/03 10,830 $33.76 10,830 - 

       Since June 1998, the Company has purchased a total of 2,152,423 shares of its common stock, which represents approximately 19.4% of 
the Company stock outstanding when the buyback program was initiated on June 30, 1998.  
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION 

Overview 

       Parkway is a self-administered and self-managed REIT specializing in the acquisition, operations and leasing of office properties. The 
Company is geographically focused on the Southeastern and Southwestern United States and Chicago. As of March 1, 2004 Parkway owned or 
had an interest in 59 office properties located in eleven states with an aggregate of approximately 10.7 million square feet of leasable space. 
The Company generates revenue primarily by leasing office space to its customers and providing management and leasing services to third-party 
office property owners (including joint venture interests). The primary drivers behind Parkway’s revenues are occupancy, rental rates and 
customer retention.  

Occupancy. Parkway’s revenues are dependent on the occupancy of its office buildings. As a result of job losses and over supply of office properties in 
some markets, vacancy rates have increased nationally and in Parkway’s markets. The office sector currently is experiencing the highest vacancies in a 
decade. As of January 1, 2004, occupancy of Parkway’s office portfolio was 87.9% compared to 91.1% as of October 1, 2003 and 92.3% as of January 1, 
2003. Not included in the January 1, 2004 occupancy rate are 30 signed leases totaling 242,000 square feet, which commence during the first 
through fourth quarter of 2004 and raise our percentage leased to 90.4%. To combat rising vacancy, Parkway utilizes innovative approaches to produce 
new leases. These include as the Broker Bill of Rights, a short-form lease and customer advocacy programs which are models in the industry and have 
helped the Company maintain occupancy around 90% during a time when the national occupancy rate is approximately 83%. Parkway projects 
occupancy ranging from 87% to 91% in 2004 for its office properties. 

Rental Rates. An increase in vacancy rates has the effect of reducing market rental rates. Parkway’s leases typically have three to seven year terms. As 
leases expire, the Company replaces the existing leases with new leases at the current market rental rate, which, in today’s economy, is often lower 
than the existing lease rate. Customer retention is increasingly important in controlling costs and preserving revenue.  

Customer Retention. Keeping our existing customers is important as high customer retention leads to increased occupancy, less downtime between 
leases, and reduced tenant improvement and leasing costs. Parkway estimates that it costs six times more to replace an existing customer with a new 
one. This ratio represents the sum of downtime on the space plus leasing costs, which rise as market vacancies increase. Therefore, Parkway focuses a 
great deal of energy on customer retention. Parkway's operating philosophy is based on the premise that we are in the customer retention business. 
Parkway seeks to retain its customers by continually focusing on operations at its office properties. The Company believes in providing superior 
customer service; hiring, training, retaining and empowering each employee; and creating an environment of open communication both internally and 
externally with our customers and our stockholders. Over the past seven years, Parkway maintained an approximate 75% customer retention rate. 
Parkway’s customer retention for the year ending December 31, 2003 was 58.1% compared to 71.3% for the year ending December 31, 2002.  

In 2003, customer retention was below the Company’s historical average primarily as a result of the loss of two major customers effective 
December 31, 2003:  Burlington Industries, which occupied 137,000 square feet at 400 North Belt in Houston, Texas and Skytel, a subsidiary of 
MCI/WorldCom, Inc. (“WorldCom”), which occupied 156,000 square feet at the Skytel Centre in Jackson, Mississippi. The Company received 
approximately $2,314,000 annually in total revenue ($1,300,000 after expenses) from Burlington and $2,500,000 annually in total revenue 
($1,800,000 after expenses) from WorldCom. Due to the loss of these two major customers, we anticipate that 2004 income from office and parking 
properties will decrease until such time as the vacant space can be leased. 

       Subsequent to December 31, 2003, the Company signed four leases for 66,000 square feet within the former Burlington space at 400 North Belt. 
Also subsequent to December 31, 2003, the Company announced the renaming of the Skytel Centre to City Centre, the signing of leases which raise 
the City Centre building occupancy to approximately 92% and the development of a $6.5 million, 500-space parking facility to accommodate building 
customers. The largest lease at City Centre was signed with Forman Perry Watkins Krutz & Tardy LLP for 145,000 square feet, commencing upon 
completion of the improvements to the space in the third quarter of 2004. Forman Perry will occupy the space through December 31, 2011, subject to 
certain termination rights beginning July 31, 2008. The firm is consolidating employees from two buildings in Jackson and will vacate approximately 
70,000 square feet in One Jackson Place, another Parkway-owned asset. The other large new customers at City Centre include Entergy Mississippi, 
Inc. and Ross & Yerger, which leased 19,500 and 14,500 square feet, respectively. 

Strategic Planning. For many years, Parkway has been engaged in a process of strategic planning and goal setting. The material goals and 
objectives of Parkway's earlier strategic plans have been achieved, and benefited Parkway's stockholders through increased FFO and dividend 
payments per share. Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted a three-year strategic plan referred to as Value2 (Value Square). This plan 
reflects the employees’ commitment to create value for its shareholders while holding firm to the core values as espoused in the Parkway 
Commitment to Excellence. The Company plans to create value by Venturing with best partners, Asset recycling, Leverage neutral growth, 
Uncompromising focus on operations and providing an Equity return to its shareholders that is 10% greater than that of its peer group, the 
National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”) office index. Equity return is defined as growth in funds from operations 
(“FFO”) per diluted share. 

The highlights of 2003 reflect the strategy set forth in Value2 as described below: 

� Venture with Best Partners. During 2003 we sold joint venture interests in three office properties. Parkway continues to 
evaluate its existing portfolio for joint venture candidates and anticipates joint venturing more properties, as well as purchasing 
new properties with the intention of joint venturing them. 

� Asset Recycling. The Company sold one office property, while maintaining a 10-year non-cancelable management contract, 
and a three-acre parcel of land. Using the proceeds from the joint ventures, property sales and stock offerings, Parkway 
purchased four buildings totaling $125 million. 
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� Leverage Neutral Growth. Parkway began 2003 with a debt to total market capitalization of 45% and operated most of the 
year well below 40%. The decrease in debt to total market capitalization is a result of timing delays in reinvesting proceeds 
from joint ventures, asset sales and stock offerings. Once all of these funds have been reinvested, the Company anticipates 
that the debt to total market capitalization will average around 45% for the three years of Value2. During 2003, we closed four 
mortgages for approximately $100 million, issued 690,000 common shares for a net $24 million, redeemed 2,650,000 
shares of 8.75% Series A Preferred stock and issued 2.4 million shares of 8.0% Series D Preferred stock. 

� Uncompromising Focus on Operations. Recognizing that in this difficult real estate environment, operating efficiently and 
consistently is more important than ever,  Parkway implemented the Uncompromising Focus on Operations (“UFO”) program 
in the first quarter of 2003, whereby Parkway’s Customer Advocate grades each property in all areas of consistency and high 
standards. This is done in conjunction with the Customer Advocate interviews with each customer each year. Parkway 
continues to focus on the basics of our business:  customer retention, leasing, and controlling operating expenses and capital 
expenditures, to maintain our occupancy, which have the effect of maintaining and increasing revenues.  

� Equity Returns to Shareholders 10% Greater than the NAREIT Office Index. Parkway is one-third of the way through the 
Value2 plan and achieved this financial goal for the first year of the plan. FFO growth for the first twelve months of Value2 was 
negative 1.1% for the Company, which exceeded the FFO growth of the NAREIT Office Index by more than 10%. 

Financial Condition 

Comments are for the balance sheet dated December 31, 2003 compared to the balance sheet dated December 31, 2002. 

Office and Parking Properties. In 2003, Parkway continued the application of its strategy of operating and acquiring office properties, 
joint venturing interests in office assets, as well as liquidating non-core assets and office assets that no longer meet the Company's investment 
criteria and/or the Company has determined value will be maximized by selling. During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company 
purchased four office properties, sold one office property, sold land and sold two joint venture interests. Total assets increased $38,371,000, 
and office and parking properties (before depreciation) increased $38,168,000 or 4.7%. 

Purchases and Improvements 

       Parkway's direct investment in office and parking properties increased $22,144,000 net of depreciation, to a carrying amount of 
$728,695,000 at December 31, 2003 and consisted of 54 operating properties. During the year ending December 31, 2003, Parkway 
purchased four office properties as follows (in thousands): 

Date Purchase 
Office Property Location Square Feet Purchased Price 

Citrus Center* Orlando, FL 258 02/11/03 $  32,000 
Peachtree Dunwoody Pavilion Atlanta, GA 366 08/28/03 40,000 
Wells Fargo Building Houston, TX 135 09/12/03 12,000 
Carmel Crossing Charlotte, NC 324 11/24/03 41,000 
Total  1,083  $125,000 

*Parkway assumed a $19,665,000 first mortgage with a 7.91% interest rate as part of the Citrus Center purchase. The mortgage note payable 
has been recorded at $21,153,000 to reflect it at fair value based on Parkway’s incremental borrowing rate of 6.00% as of the date of purchase. 

During the year ending December 31, 2003, the Company capitalized building improvements and additional purchase expenses of 
$20,742,000 and recorded depreciation expense of $25,037,000 related to its office and parking properties. 

 Dispositions 

On August 1, 2003, the Company sold its investment in the BB&T Financial Center in Winston-Salem, North Carolina to Cabot Investment 
Properties for $27.5 million plus the assumption of future tenant improvements of approximately $500,000. Parkway Realty Services 
continues to manage and lease the property under a ten-year management agreement and recognized an acquisition fee of $186,000. The 
Company recorded a gain on this sale of $5,020,000. The taxable gain from this sale was deferred through a Section 1031 like-kind exchange 
and accordingly, no special dividend of capital gain was required. The sales proceeds were used to purchase the Peachtree Dunwoody Pavilion. 
In connection with the sale, the Company paid $11,201,000 toward the early extinguishment of the 7.31% mortgage secured by the BB&T 
Financial Center. 

       The Company is also considering selling its property in Greenville, South Carolina. During the year ended December 31, 2002, the 
Company recorded an impairment loss on the Greenville, South Carolina property in the amount of $1.6 million. The loss was created largely 
by rental rate decreases and current conditions within the market. The estimated fair value of the Greenville property was determined based on 
current prices of similar properties in the market area. The decision to sell operating assets will be based upon the Company's analysis of 
existing markets and competing investment opportunities. 
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Investment in Unconsolidated Joint Ventures. In accordance with the Company’s three-year strategic plan, Value2, Parkway is 
committed to forming joint ventures with best partners for the purpose of acquiring office assets in the Southeastern and Southwestern United 
States and Chicago. Parkway will operate, manage and lease the properties on a day-to-day basis, provide acquisition and construction 
management services to the joint venture, and receive fees for providing these services. The joint venture partner will provide 70 to 80% of the 
joint venture capital, with Parkway to provide the balance. In 2003, investment in unconsolidated joint ventures increased $4,386,000 or 
28.0%. The primary reason for the increase is the result of Parkway entering into two joint venture agreements with respect to three office 
properties. See detailed information regarding the 2003 joint venture transactions under the caption “Joint Ventures” appearing in Item 1.
“Business”. The 2003 joint venture transactions are summarized in the following table (in thousands).  

Interest Square Date Gross Sales 
Property Sold Location Feet Sold Price 

Viad Corporate Center 70% Phoenix, AZ 482 03/06/03 $42,000 
IBM Building/River Oaks Place 80% Jackson, MS 170 05/28/03 13,200 

$55,200 

Land Available for Sale. At December 31, 2003, non-core assets, other than mortgage loans, totaled $3,528,000. During the year 
ended December 31, 2002, the Company recorded an impairment loss of $205,000 on 11.856 acres of land in New Orleans, Louisiana. After 
recording the write down, the carrying value corresponds with the net realizable value of the land, based on market research and comparable 
sales in the area. The Company expects to continue its efforts to liquidate its remaining non-core assets. 

Interest, Rents Receivable and Other Assets. Interest, rents receivable and other assets increased $13,045,000 for the year ending 
December 31, 2003. The increase is primarily attributable to the increase in intangible assets due to the purchase of office properties in 2003. 
The increase in intangible assets represents the portion of the purchase price attributable to above or below market in-place leases, lease costs 
and value of in-place leases. In 2003, the total purchase price allocated to above or below market in-place leases, lease costs and the value of 
in-place leases was $10 million. Parkway accounts for its acquisitions of real estate in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 141, “Business Combinations,” which requires the fair value of the real estate acquired to be allocated to acquired tangible and 
intangible assets. 

Notes Payable to Banks. Notes payable to banks decreased $31,895,000 or 22.5% for the year ending December 31, 2003. The decrease
is primarily attributable to proceeds from the 2003 joint ventures used to reduce amounts outstanding under the Company’s lines of credit. We 
anticipate that the outstanding balance under the Company’s lines of credit will increase as the funds from the joint ventures are invested in new 
operating properties. At December 31, 2003, notes payable to banks totaled $110,075,000 and resulted primarily from advances under bank lines of 
credit to purchase additional properties and to make improvements to office properties. 

Mortgage Notes Payable Without Recourse. Mortgage notes payable without recourse increased $37,444,000 or 17.9% during the year 
ending December 31, 2003, as a result of the following (in thousands): 

 Increase 
 (Decrease) 
Assumption of first mortgage on Citrus Center purchase $  21,153  
Placement of mortgage debt 42,800  
Scheduled principal payments (11,005) 
Principal paid on early extinguishment of debt (15,422) 
Market value adjustment on reverse swap interest rate contract (82) 

$  37,444  

On April 18, 2003, the Company closed an $18.8 million non-recourse first mortgage secured by two properties in Houston, Texas and one 
property in Phoenix, Arizona. The mortgage, which is interest only for the first three years, has a fixed interest rate of 5.27% with a 7-year term 
and a 25-year amortization. Proceeds from the mortgage were used to reduce amounts outstanding under the Company’s lines of credit, 
pending future reinvestment in new properties. 

On December 18, 2003, the Company closed a $24,000,000 non-recourse first mortgage secured by three properties in Houston, 
Texas. The mortgage, which is interest only for the first year, has a fixed interest rate of 4.83% with a 5-year term and a 25-year amortization. 
Proceeds from the mortgage were used to reduce amounts outstanding under the Company’s lines of credit, pending future reinvestment in 
operating properties. 

       The Company expects to continue seeking fixed-rate, non-recourse mortgage financing with maturities from five to ten years typically 
amortizing over 25 to 30 years on select office building investments as additional capital is needed. The Company targets a debt to total 
market capitalization rate at a percentage in the mid-40's. This rate may vary at times pending acquisitions, sales and/or equity offerings. In 
addition, volatility in the price of the Company’s common stock may affect the debt to total market capitalization ratio. However, over time 
the Company plans to maintain a percentage in the mid-40's. In addition to this debt ratio, the Company monitors interest and fixed charge 
coverage ratios. The interest coverage ratio is computed by comparing the cash interest accrued to earnings before interest, taxes, 
depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA"). The fixed charge coverage ratio is computed by comparing the cash interest accrued, principal 
payments made on mortgage loans and preferred dividends paid to EBITDA.  
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The computation of the interest and fixed charge coverage ratios and the reconciliation of net income to EBITDA are as follows for the 
year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 (in thousands): 

Year Ended 
December 31 

2003  2002 
Net income $  43,181  $  29,512  
Adjustments to net income: 
 Interest expense 18,860  24,821  

Amortization of financing costs 858  832  
Prepayment expenses - early extinguishment of debt -  833  
Depreciation and amortization 28,030  27,434  
Amortization of deferred compensation 694  2,190  
(Gain) loss on sale of joint venture interests and real estate (10,661)  1,298 

 Tax expenses 5  (23) 
EBITDA adjustments - unconsolidated joint ventures 5,455  2,550  

EBITDA (1) $  86,422  $  89,447  

Interest coverage ratio: 
EBITDA $  86,422  $  89,447  

Interest expense: 
 Interest expense $  18,860  $  24,821  

Interest expense - unconsolidated joint ventures 2,796  1,353  
Total interest expense $  21,656  $  26,174  

Interest coverage ratio 3.99  3.42  

Fixed charge coverage ratio: 
EBITDA $  86,422  $  89,447  

Fixed charges: 
 Interest expense $  21,656  $  26,174  
 Preferred dividends 11,443  12,054  

Preferred distributions - unconsolidated joint ventures 499  314  
Principal payments (excluding early extinguishment of debt) 11,005  10,965  
Principal payments - unconsolidated joint ventures 573  320  

Total fixed charges $  45,176  $  49,827  

Fixed charge coverage ratio 1.91  1.80  

(1) EBITDA, a non-GAAP financial measure, means operating income before mortgage and other interest expense, income taxes, 
depreciation and amortization. We believe that EBITDA is useful to investors and Parkway's management as an indication of the Company's 
ability to service debt and pay cash distributions. EBITDA, as calculated by us, is not comparable to EBITDA reported by other REITs that do 
not define EBITDA exactly as we do. EBITDA does not represent cash generated from operating activities in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and should not be considered an alternative to operating income or net income as an indicator of performance 
or as an alternative to cash flows from operating activities as an indicator of liquidity. 
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Stockholders’ Equity. Stockholders' equity increased $31,159,000 or 8.3% during the year ended December 31, 2003 as a result of the 
following (in thousands): 

 Increase 
 (Decrease)
Net income $  43,181  
Change in market value of interest rate swap 170  

Comprehensive income 43,351  

Common stock dividends declared (26,619) 
Preferred stock dividends declared (5,352) 
Convertible preferred stock dividends declared (6,091) 
Exercise of stock options 6,079  
Shares issued - stock offerings 82,156  
Shares issued – Directors’ fees 76  
Restricted shares and deferred incentive share units  issued 5,328  
Unearned compensation (5,328) 
Amortization of unearned compensation 694  
Redemption of preferred stock (66,250) 
Shares contributed to deferred compensation plan (4,321) 
Purchase of Company stock (366) 
Shares issued through DRIP plan 7,799  
Shares issued - employee excellence recognition program 3  

$  31,159  

On March 24, 2003, the Company sold 690,000 shares of common stock in a public offering in which Wachovia Securities was the 
underwriter for net proceeds of $24.3 million or $35.25 per share. The proceeds were used to purchase Peachtree Dunwoody Pavilion and the 
Wells Fargo Building in the third quarter of 2003. 

On June 27, 2003, the Company completed the sale of 2,400,000 shares of 8.00% Series D Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock 
with net proceeds to the Company of approximately $58 million. The proceeds were used to redeem the Company’s 8.75% Series A 
Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock. The Series D Preferred Stock has a $25 liquidation value per share and will be redeemable at the 
option of the Company on or after June 27, 2008. 

On June 30, 2003, the Company redeemed all 2,650,000 shares of its 8.75% Series A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock at a 
redemption price of $25 per share or $66.25 million. The Series A Preferred Stock is no longer outstanding and all 2,760,000 authorized 
shares of Series A Preferred Stock have been reclassified back into common stock. The redemption was funded from proceeds of the 
Company’s June 2003 issuance of Series D Preferred Stock along with a portion of the proceeds from the Company’s March 2003 issuance of 
common stock. In connection with the redemption of the Series A Preferred Stock, a $2,619,000 non-cash adjustment for original issue costs 
was recorded in the second quarter in 2003. 

During the third quarter of 2003, 200,000 shares of 8.34% Series B Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock were converted into 
200,000 shares of common stock. As of December 31, 2003, there were 1,942,857 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock 
outstanding. 

Through the Company’s Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan (“DRIP Plan”), 182,033 common shares were sold during 
2003. Net proceeds received on the issuance of shares were $7,799,000, which equates to an average net price per share of $42.85 at a 
discount of 2.1%. The proceeds were used to reduce amounts outstanding under the Company’s short-term lines of credit. 

Results of Operations 

Comments are for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to the year ended December 31, 2002.

          Net income available for common stockholders for the year ended December 31, 2003 was $29,119,000 ($2.85 per basic common 
share) as compared to $17,458,000 ($1.87 per basic common share) for the year ended December 31, 2002. Net income for the year ending 
December 31, 2003 included a gain from the sale of two joint venture interests, an office property and land in the amount of $10,661,000. 
Net income for the year ending December 31, 2002 included a net loss of $1,298,000, which was attributable to the sale of a joint venture 
interest, an office property, an impairment loss on an office property and an impairment loss on land. 
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Operating Properties. The primary reason for the change in the Company’s net income from office and parking properties for 2003 as compared 
to 2002 is the net effect of the operations of the following properties purchased, properties sold and joint venture interests sold (in thousands): 

Properties Purchased: 

Office Properties Purchase Date Square Feet 
The Park on Camelback 05/22/02  103 
Viad Corporate Center 05/31/02  482 
5300 Memorial 06/05/02  154 
Town & Country Central One 06/05/02  148 
1717 St. James Place 06/05/02  110 
Citrus Center 02/11/03  258 
Peachtree Dunwoody Pavilion 08/28/03  366 
Wells Fargo Building 09/12/03  135 
Carmel Crossing 11/24/03  324 

Properties Sold: 

Office Properties Date Sold Square Feet 
Corporate Square West 05/31/02  96 
BB&T Financial Center 08/01/03  240 

Joint Venture Interests Sold: 

Office Property/Interest Sold Date Sold Square Feet 
233 North Michigan/70% 05/30/02  1,070 
Viad Corporate Center/70% 03/06/03  482 
IBM Building & River Oaks Place/80% 05/28/03  170 

       Operations of office and parking properties are summarized below (in thousands): 

Year Ended 
December 31 

2003 2002 
Income $142,196  $152,442  
Operating expense (63,362) (65,942) 

78,834  86,500  
Mortgage interest expense (16,319) (19,839) 
Depreciation and amortization (28,030) (27,412) 
Income from office and parking properties $  34,485  $  39,249  

Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Joint Ventures and Management Company Income. Equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint 
ventures increased $1,388,000 for the year ending December 31, 2003 compared to the year ending December 31, 2002. This increase is 
attributable to the formation of the Viad Joint Venture and the Jackson Joint Venture in 2003 and the 233 North Michigan Avenue joint venture 
in 2002. Under the terms of the joint venture agreements, Parkway continues to provide management and leasing services for the buildings on 
a day-to-day basis. The increase in management company income of $939,000 for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to 2002 is 
primarily due to the fees earned from providing management and leasing services to the joint ventures. Under Parkway's three-year strategic 
plan, Value2, Parkway will continue to pursue joint venture opportunities with best partners while maintaining the management and leasing of 
the properties on a day-to-day basis. 

Interest Expense. The $3,520,000 decrease in interest expense on office properties in 2003 compared to 2002 is primarily due to the 
net effect of the early extinguishment of one mortgage in 2003 and three mortgages in 2002, the transfer of a mortgage note payable to the 
233 North Michigan Avenue joint venture in 2002 and new loans placed or assumed in 2003 and 2002. The average interest rate on mortgage 
notes payable as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 was 6.9% and 7.4%, respectively. 

The $3,248,000 decrease in interest expense on bank notes for the year ending December 31, 2003 compared to the year ending December 31, 
2002 is primarily due to the decrease in the weighted average interest rate on bank lines of credit from 4.7% during 2002 to 2.8% during 2003. 
Additionally, the average balance of bank borrowings decreased from $127 million in 2002 to $96 million in 2003. The decrease in bank borrowings is 
primarily attributable to proceeds from the 2003 joint ventures used to reduce amounts outstanding under the Company’s lines of credit. We 
anticipate that the outstanding balance under the Company’s lines of credit will increase as the funds from the joint ventures are invested in new 
operating properties.  
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General and Administrative Expense. General and administrative expense decreased $828,000 for the year ending December 31, 2003 
compared to the same period in 2002. The net decrease is primarily due to the decrease in amortization of unearned compensation expense 
pertaining to the Company’s restricted stock shares. Due to Parkway’s achievement of the 5 in 50 Plan in 2002, the restricted shares granted 
were fully amortized in 2002. In 2003, the stockholders approved the issuance of 142,000 shares of restricted stock to certain officers of the 
Company in connection with the Value2 plan. The restricted shares issued in 2003 are valued at $5,092,000, and the vesting period for the 
stock is 7 years or 36 months if the goals of the Value2 plan are achieved. 

Comments are for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to the year ended December 31, 2001. 

       Net income available for common stockholders for the year ended December 31, 2002 was $17,458,000 ($1.87 per basic common share) 
as compared to $17,502,000 ($1.87 per basic common share) for the year ended December 31, 2001. Net income for the year ending 
December 31, 2002 included a net loss of $1,298,000, which was attributable to the sale of the Chicago Joint Venture; the sale of the 
Company's only office property in Indianapolis, Indiana; an impairment loss on the Company's only asset in Greenville, South Carolina; and an 
impairment loss on non-earning land in New Orleans, Louisiana. Net income for the year ending December 31, 2001 included a net gain on the 
sale of one office property, land and real estate equity securities totaling $1,611,000.  

Operating Properties. The primary reason for the change in the Company's net income from office and parking properties for 2002 as compared 
to 2001 is the net effect of the operations of the following properties purchased, properties sold or joint venture interest sold (in thousands): 

Properties Purchased: 

Square 
Office Properties Purchase Date Feet 
233 North Michigan 06/22/01 1,070 
550 Greens Parkway 10/01/01 72 
Bank of America Plaza 12/20/01 418 
The Park on Camelback 05/22/02 103 
Viad Corporate Center 05/31/02 482 
5300 Memorial 06/05/02 154 
Town & Country Central One 06/05/02 148 
1717 St. James Place 06/05/02 110 

Properties Sold: 

Square 
Office Properties Date Sold Feet 
Vestavia 03/30/01 75 
Corporate Square West 05/31/02 96 

Joint Venture Interest Sold: 

Square 
Office Property/Interest Sold Date Sold Feet 
233 North Michigan/70% 05/30/02 1,070 

       Operations of office and parking properties are summarized below (in thousands): 

Year Ended 
December 31 

 2002 2001 
Income $152,442  $135,968  
Operating expense (65,942) (57,465) 

86,500  78,503  
Mortgage interest expense (19,839) (21,828) 
Depreciation and amortization (27,412) (23,788) 
Income from office and parking properties $  39,249  $  32,887  

Dividend Income. Dividend income decreased $495,000 for the year ending December 31, 2002 compared to the year ending December 31, 
2001. The decrease is due to the Company's sale of all real estate equity securities held through the REIT Significant Value Program (“RSVP”) during 
the first quarter of 2001. Although we currently have no RSVP investments, we will continue to pursue opportunities in the public market in accordance 
with the RSVP Plan as conditions warrant. 
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Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Joint Ventures. Equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures increased $762,000 for the year 
ending December 31, 2002 compared to the year ending December 31, 2001. This increase is attributable to Parkway's 30% interest in the Chicago 
Joint Venture in 2002. Under the terms of the joint venture agreement with Investcorp, Parkway continues to provide management and leasing services 
for the Chicago Joint Venture on a day-to-day basis. This also accounts for the $352,000 increase in management company income in 2002 compared 
to 2001. Under Parkway's three-year strategic plan, Value2, Parkway will continue to pursue joint venture opportunities with best partners while 
maintaining the management and leasing of the properties on a day-to-day basis. 

Interest Expense. The $1,520,000 decrease in interest expense on office properties in 2002 compared to 2001 is primarily due to the net 
effect of the early extinguishment of mortgage notes payable, the transfer of a mortgage note payable to the Chicago Joint Venture and new 
loans placed in 2002 and 2001. The average interest rate on mortgage notes payable as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 was 7.4 %. 

The $1,150,000 increase in interest expense on bank notes for the year ending December 31, 2002 compared to the year ending December 31, 
2001 is primarily due to the increase in the average balance of borrowings outstanding under bank lines of credit from $74,194,000 during 2001 to 
$127,107,000 during 2002. In addition, weighted average interest rates on bank lines of credit decreased from 6.4% during 2001 to 4.7% during 2002. 

General and Administrative Expense. General and administrative expenses were $5,029,000 and $4,861,000 for the years ending December 
31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The net increase of $168,000 is primarily attributable to a few factors. Due to Parkway's achievement of the 5 in 50 
Plan, the restricted shares granted were fully amortized as of December 31, 2002. Therefore, amortization expense of restricted stock grants 
increased in 2002 by $917,000. Parkway will continue to utilize restricted share grants as incentive compensation for its new three-year strategic plan, 
Value2. 

In 2002, Parkway settled a lawsuit dating back to the early 1990's relating to management of our headquarters building, One Jackson Place, located 
in Jackson, Mississippi. The settlement resulted in a $312,000 increase to 2002 general and administrative expense. We do not anticipate any further 
costs associated with this matter. 

       Finally, increased intercompany management fee income of $945,000 for 2002 compared to 2001 resulted in a decrease in general and 
administrative expense in 2002. We define intercompany management fee income as management fees earned on Parkway owned assets.
Intercompany management fee income is recorded as a reduction of general and administrative expense. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Statement of Cash Flows. Cash and cash equivalents were $468,000 and $1,594,000 at December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, 
respectively. The Company generated $51,170,000 in cash flows from operating activities during the year ended December 31, 2003
compared to $62,816,000 for the same period of 2002. The Company used $28,417,000 in investing activities during the year ended
December 31, 2003. Proceeds from the sale of land, the BB&T Financial Center, the Viad Joint Venture interest and the Jackson Joint Venture 
interest were $97,433,000 and the Company used $106,258,000 to purchase four office properties. The Company also spent $22,199,000 
to make capital improvements at its office properties. Cash dividends of $37,946,000 ($2.60 per common share, $1.00 per Series A 
preferred share, $2.92 per Series B preferred share and $1.02 per Series D preferred share) were paid to stockholders. The Company received 
net proceeds of $82,155,000 from the sale of 690,000 shares of common stock and 2,400,000 shares of 8.00% Series D Preferred Stock 
and spent $66,250,000 to redeem 2,650,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock during the year ended December 31, 2003. Proceeds from 
long-term financing were $42,800,000, scheduled principal payments were $11,005,000 and principal payments on the early extinguishment 
of debt were $15,422,000 on mortgage notes payable during the year ending December 31, 2003. 

Liquidity. The Company plans to continue pursuing the acquisition of additional investments that meet the Company's investment criteria 
in accordance with the strategies outlined under "Item 1. Business" and intends to use bank lines of credit, proceeds from the sale of non-core 
assets and office properties, proceeds from the sale of portions of owned assets through joint ventures, possible sales of securities and cash 
balances to fund those acquisitions. At December 31, 2003, the Company had $110,075,000 outstanding under two bank lines of credit and a 
term loan. 

The Company's cash flows are exposed to interest rate changes primarily as a result of its lines of credit used to maintain liquidity and fund 
capital expenditures and expansion of the Company’s real estate investment portfolio and operations. The Company’s interest rate risk 
management objective is to limit the impact of interest rate changes on earnings and cash flows and to lower its overall borrowing costs. To
achieve its objectives, the Company borrows at fixed rates, but also utilizes a three-year unsecured revolving credit facility and a one-year unsecured 
line of credit. At December 31, 2003, Parkway had a three-year $135 million unsecured revolving credit facility with a consortium of 13 banks with
JPMorgan Chase Bank serving as the lead agent (the “$135 million line”), a $20 million unsecured one-year term loan facility with JP Morgan Chase 
Bank as administrative agent and other banks as participants (the “Term Loan”) and a $15 million unsecured line of credit with PNC Bank (the “$15 
million line”). The interest rates on the lines of credit and the Term Loan were equal to the 30-day LIBOR rate plus 112.5 to 137.5 basis points, 
depending upon overall Company leverage. The weighted average interest rate on the $135 million line, the Term Loan and the $15 million line was 
2.6% at December 31, 2003. 
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On February 6, 2004, Parkway entered into a Credit Agreement with a consortium of 11 banks with Wachovia Capital Markets, LLC as Sole Lead 
Arranger and Sole Book Runner, Wachovia Bank, National Association as Administrative Agent, PNC Bank, National Association as Syndication Agent, 
and other banks as participants. The Credit Agreement provides for a three-year $170 million unsecured revolving credit facility (the “$170 million 
line”). The $170 million line will replace the $135 million line and the Term Loan. The interest rate on the $170 million line is equal to the 30-day 
LIBOR rate plus 100 to 132.5 basis points, depending upon overall Company leverage. 

The $170 million line matures February 6, 2007 and allows for a one-year extension option available at maturity. The line is expected to fund 
acquisitions of additional investments and has a current interest rate of LIBOR rate plus 117.50 basis points. The Company paid a facility fee of 
$170,000 (10 basis points) and origination fees of $556,000 (32.71 basis points) upon closing of the loan agreement and pays an annual 
administration fee of $35,000. The Company also pays fees on the unused portion of the line based upon overall Company leverage, with the 
current rate set at 12.5 basis points. 

On February 6, 2004, Parkway also amended and renewed the $15 million line. This line of credit matures February 4, 2005, is unsecured 
and is expected to fund the daily cash requirements of the Company’s treasury management system. The $15 million line has a current interest 
rate equal to the 30-day LIBOR rate plus 117.5 basis points. The Company paid a facility fee of $15,000 (10 basis points) upon closing of the 
loan agreement. Under the $15 million line, the Company does not pay annual administration fees or fees on the unused portion of the line. 

       The Company's interest rate hedge contract as of December 31, 2003 is summarized as follows (in thousands): 

Type of Notional Maturity  Fixed Fair 
Hedge Amount Date Reference Rate Rate Market Value

Reverse Swap $  4,917 07/15/06 1-Month LIBOR + 3.455% 8.08% $243 

The effect of the reverse swap is to convert a fixed rate mortgage note payable to a variable rate. The Company does not hold or issue this
type of derivative contracts for trading or speculative purposes. 

Effective February 24, 2004, the Company entered into a $60 million interest rate swap agreement with  Union Planters Bank effectively 
locking the LIBOR rate on this portion of outstanding unsecured, floating rate bank debt at 1.293%, which equates to a current interest rate of 
2.468%. The agreement matures December 31, 2004. 

At December 31, 2003, the Company had $247,190,000 of non-recourse fixed rate mortgage notes payable with an average interest rate 
of 6.9% secured by office properties and $110,075,000 drawn under bank lines of credit and the Term Loan. Parkway's pro rata share of 
unconsolidated joint venture debt was $45,902,000 with an average interest rate of 6.4% at December 31, 2003. Based on the Company’s 
total market capitalization of approximately $978,797,000 at December 31, 2003 (using the December 31, 2003 closing price of $41.60 per 
common share), the Company’s debt represented approximately 41.2% of its total market capitalization. The Company targets a debt to total 
market capitalization rate at a percentage in the mid-40's. This rate may vary at times pending acquisitions, sales and/or equity offerings. In 
addition, volatility in the price of the Company’s common stock may affect the debt to total market capitalization ratio. However, over time 
the Company plans to maintain a percentage in the mid-40's. In addition to this debt ratio, the Company also monitors interest and fixed 
charge coverage ratios. The interest coverage ratio is computed by comparing the cash interest accrued to earnings before interest, taxes, 
depreciation and amortization. This ratio for the year ending December 31, 2003 and 2002 was 3.99 and 3.42 times, respectively. The fixed 
charge coverage ratio is computed by comparing the cash interest accrued, principal payments made on mortgage loans and preferred 
dividends paid to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. This ratio for the year ending December 31, 2003 and 2002 
was 1.91 and 1.80 times, respectively. 

       The table below presents the principal payments due and weighted average interest rates for the fixed rate debt. 

Average Fixed Rate Debt
 Interest Rate (In thousands) 
2004 6.84% $  11,319 
2005 6.82% 12,635 
2006 6.77% 17,646 
2007 6.82% 31,754 
2008 6.73% 55,892 
Thereafter 7.50% 117,944 
Total  $247,190 

Fair value at 12/31/03  $259,408 

The Company presently has plans to make additional capital improvements at its office properties in 2004 of approximately $34 million. 
These expenses include tenant improvements, capitalized acquisition costs and capitalized building improvements. Approximately $7 million 
of these improvements relate to upgrades on properties acquired in recent years that were anticipated at the time of purchase. All such 
improvements are expected to be financed by cash flow from the properties and advances on the bank lines of credit. 

Subsequent to December 31, 2003, the Company signed a lease at City Centre in Jackson, Mississippi with Forman Perry Watkins Krutz & 
Tardy LLP for 145,000 square feet, commencing upon completion of $3.2 million in improvements to the space in the third quarter of 2004. 
Additionally, Parkway committed to the development of a $6.5 million, 500-space parking facility to accommodate the building customers at 
City Centre. Parkway anticipates utilizing its current cash balance, operating cash flows and borrowings under the working capital line of credit 
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to fund the $3.2 million in improvements. The construction of the garage will be financed with a construction loan, which will bear interest at a 
rate equal to the 30-day LIBOR rate plus 125 basis points. 

       The Company anticipates that its current cash balance, operating cash flows, proceeds from the sale of office properties, proceeds from 
the sale of portions of owned assets through joint ventures, possible sales of securities and borrowings (including borrowings under the working 
capital line of credit) will be adequate to pay the Company's (i) operating and administrative expenses, (ii) debt service obligations, (iii) 
distributions to shareholders, (iv) capital improvements, and (v) normal repair and maintenance expenses at its properties both in the short and 
long term. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

At December 31, 2003, we had the following off-balance sheet arrangements:  (1) a non-controlling 30% interest in Parkway 233 North 
Michigan, LLC, a real estate joint venture; (2) a non-controlling 30% interest in Phoenix OfficeInvest, LLC, a real estate joint venture; (3) a 
non-controlling 20% interest in Parkway Joint Venture, LLC, a real estate joint venture; (4) a non-controlling 50% interest in Wink/Parkway 
Partnership, a real estate joint venture; and (5) a non-controlling .075% interest in Moore Building Associates, LP (“MBALP”), a real estate 
joint venture. 

The above real estate joint ventures own and operate office properties in Chicago, Illinois; Phoenix, Arizona; Jackson, Mississippi; New 
Orleans, Louisiana; and Memphis, Tennessee, respectively. Parkway manages all ventures on a day-to-day basis with the exception of the 
Wink/Parkway Partnership. We account for our interest in these joint ventures using the equity method of accounting.  

Parkway has a less than 1% ownership interest in MBALP and acts as the managing general partner. MBALP is primarily funded with financing 
from a third party lender, which is secured by a first lien on the rental property of the partnership. The creditors of MBALP do not have recourse 
to the Company. In acting as the general partner, the Company is committed to providing additional funding to meet partnership operating 
deficits up to an aggregate amount of $1 million. At December 31, 2003, the Company’s aggregate net investment in the partnership was $6 
million. These amounts represent the Company’s maximum exposure to loss at December 31, 2003 as a result of its involvement with MBALP. 

       The following information summarizes the financial position at December 31, 2003 for the investments in which we held an interest at 
December 31, 2003 (in thousands): 

 Total Mortgage Total Parkway’s 
Summary of Financial Position Assets Debt (1) Equity Investment 

Parkway 233 North Michigan, LLC $184,813 $102,002 $73,757 $14,963 
Phoenix OfficeInvest, LLC 62,526 42,500 17,978 4,577 
Parkway Joint Venture, LLC 17,318 11,442 5,442 31 
Wink/Parkway Partnership 1,440 526 910 455 
MBALP (2) 25,959 13,822 3,960 5,926 

$25,952 

 (1)  The mortgage debt, all of which is non-recourse, is collateralized by the individual real estate property or properties within each 
venture, the net book value of which totaled $273 million at December 31, 2003. Parkway’s proportionate share of the non-recourse mortgage 
debt totaled $46 million at December 31, 2003. 

        (2)  Parkway’s net investment in MBALP is in the form of a note receivable and bears interest at 13%. 

       The following information summarizes the results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2003 for investments which impacted our 
2003 results of operations (in thousands): 

 Total Net Parkway’s Share
Summary of Operations Revenue Income of Net Income 

Parkway 233 North Michigan, LLC $34,082 $4,585 $1,375 
Phoenix OfficeInvest, LLC 9,697 2,269 681 
Parkway Joint Venture, LLC 1,644 418 83 
Wink/Parkway Partnership 305 146 73 
MBALP 4,254 40 - 

$2,212 
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Contractual Obligations 

       We have contractual obligations including mortgage notes payable and lease obligations. The table below presents total payments due 
under specified contractual obligations by year through maturity as of December 31, 2003 (in thousands): 

Payments Due By Period 
Contractual Obligations Total 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter 
Long-Term Debt (Mortgage Notes Payable  
       Without Recourse) $316,100 $27,814 $28,320 $28,327 $44,852 $66,025 $120,762 
Capital Lease Obligations - - - - - - - 
Operating Leases 2,859 1,178 900 504 198 79 - 
Purchase Obligations 7,715 7,695 - - - 20 - 
Other Long-Term Liabilities - - - - - - - 
Total $326,674 $36,687 $29,220 $28,831 $45,050 $66,124 $120,762 

       The amounts presented above for mortgage notes payable without recourse include principal and interest payments. The amounts 
presented for purchase obligations represent the remaining tenant improvement allowance obligation for leases in place as of December 31, 
2003. 

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates 

General. Our investments are generally made in office properties. We are, therefore, generally subject to risks incidental to the ownership 
of real estate. Some of these risks include changes in supply or demand for office properties or tenants for such properties in an area in which 
we have buildings; changes in real estate tax rates; and changes in federal income tax, real estate and zoning laws. Our discussion and analysis 
of financial condition and results of operations is based upon our Consolidated Financial Statements. Our Consolidated Financial Statements 
include the accounts of Parkway Properties, Inc. and its majority owned subsidiaries. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from our estimates. 

       The accounting policies and estimates used in the preparation of our Consolidated Financial Statements are more fully described in the 
notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements. However, certain of our significant accounting policies are considered critical accounting 
policies due to the increased level of assumptions used or estimates made in determining their impact on our Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

       We consider our critical accounting policies and estimates to be those used in the determination of the reported amounts and disclosure 
related to the following: 

(1)  Impairment or disposal of long-lived assets; 
(2)  Depreciable lives applied to real estate and improvements to real estate; 
(3)  Initial recognition, measurement and allocation of the cost of real estate acquired; and 
(4)  Allowance for doubtful accounts 

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. Changes in the supply or demand of tenants for our properties could impact our ability to 
fill available space. Should a significant amount of available space exist for an extended period, our investment in a particular office building 
may be impaired. We evaluate our real estate assets upon the occurrence of significant adverse changes to assess whether any impairment 
indicators are present that affect the recovery of the carrying amount.  

Real estate assets are classified as held for sale or held and used in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) 
No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”. In accordance with SFAS No. 144, we record assets held for sale 
at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. With respect to assets classified as held and used, we periodically review these 
assets to determine whether our carrying amount will be recovered. All of our long-lived assets were classified as held and used at December 
31, 2003. A long-lived asset is considered impaired if its carrying value exceeds the estimated fair value. Fair value is based on the estimated 
and realizable contract sales price (if available) for the asset less estimated costs to sell. If a sales price is not available, the estimated 
undiscounted cash flows of the asset for the remaining useful life are used to determine if the carrying value is recoverable. The cash flow 
estimates are based on assumptions about employing the asset for its remaining useful life. Factors considered in projecting future cash flows 
include but are not limited to:  Existing leases, future leasing and terminations, market rental rates, capital improvements, tenant 
improvements, leasing commissions, inflation and other known variables. Upon impairment, we would recognize an impairment loss to reduce 
the carrying value of the long-lived asset to our estimate of its fair value. Our estimate of fair value and cash flows to be generated from our 
properties requires us to make assumptions. If one or more assumptions proves incorrect or if our assumptions change, the recognition of an 
impairment loss on one or more properties may be necessary in the future, which would result in a decrease in net income.  
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No impairment losses were recognized for the year ending December 31, 2003. However, in 2002, the Company recorded an impairment 
loss on its office property in Greenville, South Carolina in the amount of $1.6 million and on 11.856 acres of non-earning land in New Orleans, 
Louisiana in the amount of $205,000.  

Depreciable Lives Applied to Real Estate and Improvements to Real Estate. Depreciation of buildings and parking garages is 
computed using the straight-line method over an estimated useful life of 40 years. Depreciation of building improvements is computed using 
the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the improvement. If our estimate of useful lives proves to be incorrect, the 
depreciation expense recognized would also be incorrect. Therefore, a change in the estimated useful lives assigned to buildings and 
improvements would result in either an increase or decrease in depreciation expense, which would result in an increase or decrease in earnings. 

       Initial Recognition, Measurement and Allocation of the Cost of Real Estate Acquired. Parkway accounts for its acquisitions of real 
estate in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, “Business Combinations,” which requires the fair value of the 
real estate acquired to be allocated to the acquired tangible assets, consisting of land, building, garage, building improvements and tenant 
improvements, and identified intangible assets and liabilities, consisting of the value of above and below market leases, customer relationships, 
lease costs and the value of  in-place leases.  

Parkway allocates the purchase price to the fair value of the tangible assets of an acquired property by valuing the property as if it were 
vacant. The as-if-vacant value is allocated to tangible assets based on the relative fair value of those assets. Value is allocated to tenant 
improvements based on the estimated costs of similar tenants with similar terms. The difference between the purchase price and the as-if-
vacant value represents the fair value of the intangible assets or the intangible gap. The intangible gap is then allocated among the identifiable 
intangible assets. 

We determine the fair value of the tangible and intangible components using a variety of methods and assumptions all of which result in an 
approximation of fair value. Differing assumptions and methods could result in different estimates of fair value and thus, a different purchase 
price allocation and corresponding increase or decrease in depreciation and amortization expense. 

       Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. Accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for amounts that may become uncollectible in the 
future. Our receivable balance is comprised primarily of rents and operating expense recoveries due from tenants. Change in the supply of or 
demand for office properties could impact our tenants’ ability to honor their lease obligations, which could in turn affect our recorded 
revenues and estimates of the collectibility of our receivables. Revenue from real estate rentals is recognized and accrued as earned on a pro 
rata basis over the term of the lease. We regularly evaluate the adequacy of our allowance for doubtful accounts considering such factors as 
credit quality of our tenants, delinquency of payment, historical trends and current economic conditions. We provide an allowance for doubtful 
accounts for tenant balances that are over 90 days past due and for specific tenant receivables for which collection is considered doubtful. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions, which could result in an increase or decrease in bad 
debt expense. 

Funds From Operations 

       Management believes that funds from operations (“FFO”) is an appropriate measure of performance for equity REITs and computes this 
measure in accordance with the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts' ("NAREIT") definition of FFO. FFO as reported by 
Parkway may not be comparable to FFO reported by other REITs that do not define the term in accordance with the current NAREIT 
definition. We believe FFO is helpful to investors as a supplemental measure that enhances the comparability of our operations by adjusting net 
income for items not reflective of our principal and recurring operations. This measure, along with cash flows from operating, financing and 
investing activities, provides investors with an indication of our ability to incur and service debt, to make capital expenditures and to fund other 
cash needs. In addition, FFO has widespread acceptance and use within the REIT and analyst communities. Funds from operations is defined by 
NAREIT as net income (computed in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles "GAAP"), excluding gains or losses from sales 
of property and extraordinary items under GAAP, plus depreciation and amortization, and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships 
and joint ventures. Adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures will be calculated to reflect funds from operations on the 
same basis. In 2002, NAREIT clarified that FFO related to assets held for sale, sold or otherwise transferred and included in results of 
discontinued operations should continue to be included in consolidated FFO. This clarification is effective January 1, 2002, and calculation of 
FFO based on this clarification should be shown for all periods presented in financial statements or tables. We believe that in order to facilitate 
a clear understanding of our operating results, FFO should be examined in conjunction with the net income as presented in our consolidated 
financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. Funds from operations do not represent cash generated from 
operating activities in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and is not an indication of cash available 
to fund cash needs. Funds from operations should not be considered an alternative to net income as an indicator of the Company's operating 
performance or as an alternative to cash flow as a measure of liquidity. 
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       The following table presents a reconciliation of the Company's net income to FFO for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 (in 
thousands, except per share data): 

Total Dollar Amount Diluted Per Share 
Year Ended Year Ended 

December 31 December 31 
 2003 2002 2003 2002 
Net income $43,181  $29,512  $4.13  $3.11  
Adjustments to derive funds from operations: 
     Depreciation and amortization 28,030  27,412  2.24  2.36  
     Depreciation and amortization - discontinued operations -  22  -  -  
     Adjustments for unconsolidated joint ventures 2,030  861  .16  .07  
     Preferred dividends (5,352) (5,797) (.51) (.61) 
     Convertible preferred dividends (6,091) (6,257) (.58) (.66) 
     Original issue costs-redemption of preferred stock (2,619) -  (.25) -  
     Gain on real estate and joint venture interests (10,299) (501) (.82) (.04) 
     Amortization of deferred gains and other (23) (9) -  -  
     Diluted share adjustment for convertible preferred stock - - .02  .20  
Funds from operations applicable to common shareholders $48,857  $45,243  $4.39  $4.43  

In 2002, Parkway recorded an impairment loss on land of $205,000 and on an office property of $1,594,000. Consistent with NAREIT’s 
current definition of FFO, Parkway excluded the impairment loss on the office property from FFO and included the impairment loss on land in 
FFO for the year ending December 31, 2002. In October, 2003, the SEC staff shared with NAREIT its position that all impairment write-
downs must be included in FFO for all periods included in future filings. Therefore, FFO as originally reported for the year ending December 
31, 2002 has been reduced by the office property impairment loss of $1,594,000. Additionally, in accordance with Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standard No. 145, effective for fiscal years beginning after May 15, 2002, any gain or loss on extinguishment of debt that was 
classified as an extraordinary item in prior periods shall be reclassified. For the year ending December 31, 2002, Parkway recognized $833,000 
as an extraordinary loss on extinguishment of debt. Accordingly, this amount has been reclassified to “Interest expense – prepayment 
expenses” and included in FFO. Considering the items discussed above, FFO as originally reported of $47,670,000 for the year ending 
December 31, 2002 has been revised to $45,243,000. 

Inflation 

       In the last five years, inflation has not had a significant impact on the Company because of the relatively low inflation rate in the Company's 
geographic areas of operation. Most of the leases require the tenants to pay their pro rata share of operating expenses, including common area 
maintenance, real estate taxes and insurance, thereby reducing the Company's exposure to increases in operating expenses resulting from 
inflation. In addition, the Company's leases typically have three to seven year terms, which may enable the Company to replace existing leases 
with new leases at market base rent, which may be higher or lower than the existing lease rate. 

Forward-Looking Statements 

       In addition to historical information, certain sections of this Form 10-K may contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of 
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, such as those that are not in the present or 
past tense, that discuss the Company's beliefs, expectations or intentions or those pertaining to the Company's capital resources, profitability 
and portfolio performance and estimates of market rental rates. Forward-looking statements involve numerous risks and uncertainties. The 
following factors, among others discussed herein and in the Company's filings under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, could cause actual 
results and future events to differ materially from those set forth or contemplated in the forward-looking statements:  defaults or non-renewal 
of leases, increased interest rates and operating costs, failure to obtain necessary outside financing, difficulties in identifying properties to 
acquire and in effecting acquisitions, failure to qualify as a real estate investment trust under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, 
environmental uncertainties, risks related to natural disasters, financial market fluctuations, changes in real estate and zoning laws and increases 
in real property tax rates. The success of the Company also depends upon the trends of the economy, including interest rates, income tax laws, 
governmental regulation, legislation, population changes and those risk factors discussed elsewhere in this Form 10-K and in the Company's 
filings under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which 
reflect management's analysis only as the date hereof. The Company assumes no obligation to update forward-looking statements. 

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

       See information appearing under the caption "Liquidity" appearing in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and 
Results of Operations". 

As of December 31, 2003, total outstanding debt was approximately $357,265,000 of which $110,075,000 or 30.8%, is variable rate 
debt. If market rates of interest on the variable rate debt fluctuate by 10% (or approximately 26 basis points), the change in interest expense on 
the variable rate debt would increase or decrease future earnings and cash flows by approximately $286,000 annually. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

Stockholders and Board of Directors  
Parkway Properties, Inc.  

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Parkway Properties, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 
2002, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 
December 31, 2003. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the index under Item 15. These financial statements 
and schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Parkway 
Properties, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each 
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. 
Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, 
presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth herein. 

��
Jackson, Mississippi 
March 2, 2004 
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PARKWAY PROPERTIES, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands) 

December 31 December 31 
2003 2002 

Assets 
Real estate related investments: 
     Office and parking properties $844,168  $806,000  
     Accumulated depreciation (115,473) (99,449) 

728,695  706,551  

     Land available for sale 3,528  3,528  
     Note receivable from Moore Building Associates LP 5,926  5,996  
     Mortgage loans 861  869  
     Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures 20,026  15,640  

759,036  732,584  

Interest, rents receivable and other assets 42,804  29,759  
Cash and cash equivalents 468  1,594  

Total assets $802,308  $763,937  

Liabilities 
Notes payable to banks $110,075  $141,970  
Mortgage notes payable without recourse 247,190  209,746  
Accounts payable and other liabilities 37,063  35,400  

Total liabilities 394,328  387,116  

Stockholders' Equity 
8.75% Series A Preferred stock, $.001 par value, 2,760,000 shares authorized 
     and 2,650,000 shares issued and outstanding in 2002 -  66,250  
8.34% Series B Cumulative Convertible Preferred stock, $.001 par value, 
     2,142,857 shares authorized, 1,942,857 and 2,142,857 shares issued and  
     outstanding in 2003 and 2002, respectively 68,000  75,000  
Series C Preferred stock, $.001 par value, 400,000 shares authorized, no shares issued -  -  
8.00% Series D Preferred stock, $.001 par value, 2,400,000 shares authorized,  
     issued and outstanding in 2003 57,976  -  
Common stock, $.001 par value, 65,057,143 shares authorized, 10,808,131 and 
     9,385,420 shares issued and outstanding in 2003 and 2002, respectively 11  9  
Common stock held in trust, at cost, 128,000 shares in 2003 (4,321) - 
Excess stock, $.001 par value, 30,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued -  -  
Additional paid-in capital 252,695  199,979  
Unearned compensation (4,634) - 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss  -  (170) 
Retained earnings 38,253  35,753  

Total stockholders’ equity 407,980  376,821  

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $802,308  $763,937  

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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PARKWAY PROPERTIES, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(In thousands, except per share data) 

Year Ended December 31 
2003 2002 2001 

Revenues 
Income from office and parking properties $142,196  $152,442  $135,968  
Management company income 2,136  1,197  845  
Interest on note receivable from Moore Building Associates LP 819  895  873  
Incentive management fee from Moore Building Associates LP 300  325  316  
Dividend income -  -  495  
Other income and deferred gains 599  401  238  

Total revenues 146,050  155,260  138,735  

Expenses 
Office and parking properties: 
     Operating expense 63,362  65,942  57,465  
     Interest expense: 
          Contractual 16,026  18,766  20,279  
          Prepayment expenses -  833  1,302  
          Amortization of loan costs 293  240  247  
     Depreciation and amortization 28,030  27,412  23,788  
Operating expense for other real estate properties 37  34  39  
Interest expense on bank notes: 
          Contractual 2,834  6,055  4,800  
          Amortization of loan costs 565  592  697  
Management company expenses 391  416  379  
General and administrative 4,201  5,029  4,861  

Total expenses 115,739  125,319  113,857  

Income before equity in earnings, gain (loss), minority interest and  
     discontinued operations 30,311  29,941  24,878  
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures 2,212  824  62  
Gain (loss) on sale of joint venture interests, real estate and real estate 10,661  (474) 1,611  
Impairment loss on office property -  (1,594) -  
Minority interest - unit holders (3) (2) (3) 

Income from continuing operations 43,181  28,695  26,548  

Discontinued operations: 
     Income from discontinued operations -   47  -  
     Gain on sale of real estate from discontinued operations -   770  -  

Net income 43,181  29,512  26,548  
Change in unrealized gain on real estate equity securities -  -  (821) 
Change in market value of interest rate swap 170  1,524  (1,694) 

Comprehensive income $  43,351  $  31,036  $  24,033  

Net income available to common stockholders: 
Net income $  43,181  $  29,512  $  26,548  
Original issue costs associated with redemption or preferred stock (2,619) -  - 
Dividends on preferred stock (5,352) (5,797) (5,797) 
Dividends on convertible preferred stock (6,091) (6,257) (3,249) 

Net income available to common stockholders $  29,119  $  17,458  $  17,502  

Net income per common share: 
Basic: 
Income before discontinued operations $     2.85  $     1.78  $     1.87  
Discontinued operations -   .09  -  
Net income $     2.85  $     1.87  $     1.87  

Diluted: 
Income before discontinued operations $     2.79  $     1.75  $     1.85  
Discontinued operations -  .09  -  
Net income $     2.79  $     1.84  $     1.85  

Dividends per common share $     2.60  $     2.56  $     2.45  

Weighted average shares outstanding: 
Basic 10,224  9,312  9,339  
Diluted 10,453  9,480  9,442  

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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PARKWAY PROPERTIES, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(In thousands) 

Year Ended December 31 
2003 2002 2001 

8.75% Series A Preferred stock, $.001 par value 
     Balance at beginning of year $  66,250  $  66,250  $  66,250  
          Redemption of preferred stock (66,250) -  - 
     Balance at end of year -  66,250  66,250  

8.34% Series B Cumulative Convertible Preferred stock, $.001 par value 
     Balance at beginning of year 75,000  75,000  -  
          Shares issued – stock offerings -  -  75,000  
          Conversion of preferred stock to common stock (7,000) -  - 
     Balance at end of year 68,000  75,000  75,000  

8.00% Series D Preferred stock, $.001 par value 
     Balance at beginning of year -  -  -  
          Shares issued 57,976  -  -  
     Balance at end of year 57,976  -  -  

Common stock, $.001 par value 
     Balance at beginning of year 9  9  10  
          Shares issued – stock offering 1  -  -  
          Shares issued - other 1  -  -  
          Purchase of Company stock -  -  (1) 
     Balance at end of year 11  9  9  

Common stock held in trust 
     Balance at beginning of year -  -  -  
          Shares contributed to deferred compensation plan (4,321) -  - 
     Balance at end of year (4,321) -  - 

Additional paid-in capital 
     Balance at beginning of year 199,979  196,032  214,568  
          Stock options exercised 6,079  2,996  1,343  
          Shares issued in lieu of Directors' fees 76  62  55  
          Restricted shares issued 5,092  -  60  
          Deferred incentive share units issued 236  -  -  
          Shares issued - employee excellence recognition program 3  3  2  
          Shares issued - DRIP Plan 7,799  1,310  -  
          Shares issued - stock offerings 24,178  -  (1,994) 
          Conversion of preferred stock to common stock 7,000  -  -  
          Original issue costs associated with redemption of preferred stock 2,619  -  -  
          Purchase of Company stock (366) (424) (18,002) 
     Balance at end of year 252,695  199,979  196,032  

Unearned compensation 
     Balance at beginning of year -  (2,190) (3,402) 
          Restricted shares issued (5,092) - (60) 
          Deferred incentive share units issued (236) -  - 
          Amortization of unearned compensation 694  2,190  1,272  
     Balance at end of year (4,634) - (2,190) 

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 
     Balance at beginning of year (170) (1,694) 821 
          Change in unrealized loss on real estate equity securities -  -  (821) 
          Change in market value of interest rate swaps 170  1,524  (1,694) 
     Balance at end of year -  (170) (1,694) 

Retained earnings 
     Balance at beginning of year 35,753  42,174  47,502  
          Net income 43,181  29,512  26,548  
          Original issue costs associated with redemption of preferred stock (2,619) -  - 
          Preferred stock dividends declared (5,352) (5,797) (5,797) 
          Convertible preferred stock dividends declared (6,091) (6,257) (3,249) 
          Common stock dividends declared (26,619) (23,879) (22,830) 
     Balance at end of year 38,253  35,753  42,174  

Total stockholders' equity $407,980  $376,821  $375,581  

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 

{  36 }



PARKWAY PROPERTIES, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(In thousands) 

Year Ended December 31 
2003 2002 2001 

Operating activities 
     Net income $    43,181  $    29,512  $    26,548  
     Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash 
          provided by operating activities: 
          Depreciation and amortization 28,030  27,412  23,788  
          Amortization of above (below) market leases (29) 22  -  
          Amortization of loan costs 858  832  944  
          Amortization of unearned compensation 694  2,190  1,272  
          Gain on sale of joint venture interests and real estate (10,661) 1,298 (1,611) 
          Equity in earnings of consolidated joint ventures (2,212) (824) (62) 
          Other (8) (11) (8) 
          Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
               Increase in receivables and other assets (5,501) (5,030) (9,417) 
               Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses (3,182) 7,415  9,892  

     Cash provided by operating activities 51,170  62,816  51,346  

Investing activities 
     Payments received on mortgage loans 8  8  6  
     Net decrease in note receivable from Moore Building Associates LP -  946  1,921  
     Distributions from unconsolidated joint ventures 3,148  1,641  34  
     Investments in unconsolidated joint ventures (549) (1,663) - 
     Purchases of real estate related investments (106,258) (97,823) (213,847) 
     Proceeds from sales of joint venture interests real estate 97,433  58,602  29,503  
     Real estate development -  (230) (42) 
     Improvements to real estate related investments (22,199) (20,063) (15,726) 

Cash used in investing activities (28,417) (58,582) (198,151) 

Financing activities 
     Principal payments on mortgage notes payable (26,427) (20,840) (26,485) 
     Net proceeds from (payments on) bank borrowings (31,724) 17,450  42,468  
     Proceeds from long-term financing 42,800  29,975  106,000  
     Stock options exercised 6,080  2,996  1,343  
     Dividends paid on common stock (26,349) (23,445) (22,416) 
     Dividends paid on preferred stock (11,597) (12,054) (7,481) 
     Purchase of Company stock (366) (424) (18,003) 
     Proceeds from DRIP Plan 7,799  1,310  -  
     Redemption of preferred stock (66,250) -  -  
     Proceeds from stock offerings 82,155  -  73,006  

Cash (used in) provided by financing activities (23,879) (5,032) 148,432 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,126) (798) 1,627 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,594  2,392  765  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $       468  $     1,594  $     2,392  

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2003 

Note A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Principles of consolidation  

       The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Parkway Properties, Inc. ("Parkway" or "the Company") and its majority 
owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated. 

Basis of presentation 

       The accompanying financial statements reflect all adjustments which are, in the opinion of management, necessary for a fair statement of the results 
for the periods presented. All such adjustments are of a normal recurring nature. The financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annual 
report and the notes thereto. 

Effective January 1, 1997, the Company elected to be taxed as a real estate investment trust (REIT) under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended. 

       The Company completed its reorganization into the UPREIT (Umbrella Partnership REIT) structure effective January 1, 1998. The Company 
anticipates that the UPREIT structure will enable it to pursue additional investment opportunities by having the ability to offer tax-advantaged 
operating partnership units to property owners in exchange for properties. 

Business 

       The Company's operations are exclusively in the real estate industry, principally the operation, management, and ownership of office 
buildings.  

Use of estimates 

       The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

Cash equivalents 

       The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 

Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures 

As of December 31, 2003, Parkway has four investments in unconsolidated joint ventures, which are accounted for using the equity method 
of accounting. Parkway's investments in unconsolidated joint ventures consist of a 50% interest in Wink-Parkway Partnership, a 30% interest in 
Parkway 233 North Michigan, LLC, a 30% interest in Phoenix OfficeInvest, LLC and a 20% interest in Parkway Joint Venture LLC. The 
Company has a non-controlling interest in these investments and accounts for the interest using the equity method of accounting. Therefore, 
Parkway reports its share of income and losses based on its ownership interest in these entities. Parkway classifies its interests as non-
controlling when it holds less than a majority voting interest in the entity. 

In addition to the joint ventures described above, Parkway has a less than 1% ownership interest in Moore Building Associates LP 
(“MBALP”). Parkway accounts for this investment using the equity method of accounting (See Note C). 

Real estate properties 

Real estate properties are stated at the lower of cost less accumulated depreciation, or fair value. Cost includes the carrying amount of the 
Company's investment plus any additional consideration paid, liabilities assumed, costs of securing title and improvements made subsequent to 
acquisition. Depreciation of buildings and building improvements is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of 
the assets which range from 7 to 40 years. Depreciation of tenant improvements, including personal property, is computed using the straight-
line method over the term of the lease involved. Maintenance and repair expenses are charged to expense as incurred. Geographically, the 
Company's properties are concentrated in the Southeastern and Southwestern United States and Chicago. 

       The Company evaluates its real estate assets upon occurrence of significant adverse changes in their operations to assess whether any 
impairment indicators are present that affect the recovery of the carrying amount. Real estate assets are classified as held for sale or held and 
used in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets". In accordance with SFAS No. 144, Parkway records assets held for sale at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to 
sell. With respect to assets classified as held and used, Parkway recognizes an impairment loss to the extent the carrying amount is not 
recoverable and exceeds its fair value. Fair value is based on the estimated and realizable contract sales price (if available) for the asset less 
estimated costs to sell. If a sales price is not available, the estimated undiscounted cash flows of the asset for the remaining useful life are used 
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to determine if the carrying value is recoverable. The cash flow estimates are based on assumptions about employing the asset for its remaining 
useful life. Factors considered in projecting future cash flows include but are not limited to:  Existing leases, future leasing and terminations, 
market rental rates, capital improvements, tenant improvements, leasing commissions, inflation and other known variables. Upon impairment, 
Parkway recognizes an impairment loss to reduce the carrying value of the real estate asset to our estimate of its fair value. 

       Management continually evaluates the Company's office buildings and the markets where the properties are located to ensure that these 
buildings continue to meet their investment criteria. During 1998, management implemented a self management strategy for the Company's 
office buildings which requires the Company to have minimum square footage in an area in order for the strategy to be cost effective. If the 
office properties no longer meet management's investment criteria or the management of the building is not cost effective, management may 
consider a sale of the office property. If such a sale becomes probable, the office property is classified as held for sale. 

Gains from sales of real estate are recognized based on the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 66 
which require upon closing, the transfer of rights of ownership to the purchaser, receipt from the purchaser of an adequate cash down payment 
and adequate continuing investment by the purchaser. If the requirements for recognizing gains have not been met, the sale and related costs 
are recorded, but the gain is deferred and recognized generally on the installment method of accounting as collections are received. 

       Management fee income and leasing and brokerage commissions are recorded in income as earned. Such fees on Company-owned
properties are eliminated in consolidation. 

       Revenue from real estate rentals is recognized and accrued as earned on a pro rata basis over the term of the lease. 

       Non-core assets (see Note D) are carried at the lower of cost or fair value minus estimated costs to sell. Operating real estate held for 
investment is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. In 2002, an impairment loss of $205,000 was recorded on 11.856 acres of 
land in New Orleans, Louisiana. The loss on the land was computed based on market research and comparable sales in the area. 

Acquired Real Estate Assets 

       Parkway accounts for its acquisitions of real estate in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, “Business 
Combinations,” which requires the fair value of the real estate acquired to be allocated to the acquired tangible assets, consisting of land, 
building, garage, building improvements and tenant improvements, and identified intangible assets and liabilities, consisting of the value of 
above and below market leases, customer relationships, lease costs and the value of  in-place leases.  

Parkway allocates the purchase price to the fair value of the tangible assets of an acquired property by valuing the property as if it were 
vacant. The as-if-vacant value is allocated to tangible assets based on the relative fair value of those assets. Value is allocated to tenant 
improvements based on the estimated costs of similar tenants with similar terms. The difference between the purchase price and the as-if-
vacant value represents the fair value of the intangible assets or the intangible gap. The intangible gap is then allocated among the identifiable 
intangible assets including the above or below market value of in-place leases, customer relationships, lease costs and value of in-place leases. 

       The fair value of above or below market in-place lease values is the present value of the difference between the contractual amount to be 
paid pursuant to the in-place lease and the estimated current market lease rate expected over the remaining life of the lease. The capitalized 
above market lease values are amortized as a reduction of rental income over the remaining terms of the respective leases. The capitalized 
below market lease values are amortized as an increase to rental income over the remaining terms of the respective leases.  

       The fair value of customer relationships represents the quantifiable benefits related to developing a relationship with the current customer. 
Examples of these benefits would be growth prospects for developing new business with the existing customer, the ability to attract similar 
customers to the building, the tenant’s credit quality and expectations of lease renewals (including those existing under the terms of the lease 
agreement or management’s expectation for renewal), among other factors. We believe that there would typically be little value associated 
with customer relationships that is in excess of the value of the in-place lease and their typical renewal rates. Any value assigned to customer 
relationships is amortized over the remaining terms of the respective leases plus any expected renewal periods as a lease cost amortization 
expense. 

The fair value of lease costs represents the estimated commissions or legal fees paid in connection with the current leases in place. Lease 
costs are amortized over the remaining terms of the respective leases as lease cost amortization expense. 

The fair value of in-place leases is the present value associated with the cost avoidance of re-leasing the in-place leases. These costs are 
considered the origination cost of replacing the current leases with leases that have similar characteristics as the in-place leases. The value of 
in-place leases is amortized as a lease cost amortization expense over the expected life of the lease, including expected renewals. The current 
estimated lives assigned to in-place leases range from 9 to 11 years.  

In no event does the amortization period for intangible assets exceed the remaining depreciable life of the building. Should a customer 
terminate its lease, the unamortized portion of the in-place lease value, lease cost and customer relationship intangibles would be charged to 
expense. Additionally, the unamortized portion of above market in-place leases would be recorded as a reduction to rental income and the 
below market in-place lease value would be recorded as an increase to rental income. 
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       The Company may engage independent third-party appraisers to perform these valuations and those appraisals use commonly employed 
valuation techniques, such as discounted cash flow analyses. Factors considered in these analyses include an estimate of carrying costs during 
hypothetical expected lease-up periods considering current market conditions, and costs to execute similar leases. Parkway also considers 
information obtained about each property as a result of its pre-acquisition due diligence, marketing and leasing activities in estimating the fair 
value of the tangible and intangible assets acquired. In estimating carrying costs, the Company includes real estate taxes, insurance and other 
operating expenses and estimates of lost rentals at market rates during the expected lease-up periods depending on specific local market 
conditions and depending on the type of property acquired. Additionally, Parkway estimates costs to execute similar leases including leasing 
commissions, legal and other related expenses to the extent that such costs are not already incurred in connection with a new lease origination 
as part of the transaction. 

Real estate equity securities 

Real estate equity securities owned by the Company, if any, are categorized as available-for-sale securities, as defined by SFAS No. 115, 
"Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities" and are reflected at market. Net unrealized gains and losses are reflected in 
comprehensive income as a separate component of stockholders' equity until realized. As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, Parkway did not 
own any real estate equity securities. 

       Dividend income is recognized on the accrual basis based on the number of shares owned as of the dividend record date. 

Interest income recognition 

       Interest is generally accrued monthly based on the outstanding loan balances. Recognition of interest income is discontinued whenever, in 
the opinion of management, the collectibility of such income becomes doubtful. After a loan is classified as non-earning, interest is recognized 
as income when received in cash. 

Amortization 

       Debt origination costs are deferred and amortized using a method that approximates the interest method over the term of the loan. 
Leasing costs are deferred and amortized using the straight-line method over the term of the respective lease. 

Derivative Financial Instruments 

       The Company follows SFAS No. 133 "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities" and recognizes all derivative 
instruments on the balance sheet at their fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recorded each period in current earnings or other 
comprehensive income, depending on whether a derivative is designated as part of a hedge transaction and, if it is, the type of hedge 
transaction. The ineffective portion of the hedge, if any, is immediately recognized in earnings. 

Stock based compensation 

The Company has granted stock options for a fixed number of shares to employees and directors with an exercise price equal to or above 
the fair value of the shares at the date of grant. The Company accounts for stock option grants in accordance with APB Opinion No. 
25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees" (the intrinsic value method), and accordingly, recognizes no compensation expense for the 
stock option grants. 

       The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the company had applied the fair value recognition 
provisions of FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, to stock-based employee compensation. 

Year Ended December 31 
2003 2002 2001 

Net income available to common stockholders $29,119 $ 7,458  $17,502  

Stock based employee compensation costs assuming fair value method (425) (763) (1,083) 

Pro forma net income available to common stockholders $28,694 $16,695  $16,419  

Pro forma net income per common share: 
Basic: 
      Net income available to common stockholders $    2.85 $    1.87  $    1.87  
      Stock based employee compensation costs assuming fair value method (.04) (.08) (.11) 
      Pro forma net income per common share 2.81 $    1.79  $    1.76  

Diluted: 
      Net income available to common stockholders $    2.79 $    1.84  $    1.85  
      Stock based employee compensation costs assuming fair value method (.04) (.08) (.11) 
      Pro forma net income per common share $    2.75 $    1.76  $    1.74  

The Company also accounts for restricted stock in accordance with APB No. 25 and accordingly, compensation expense is recognized over 
the expected vesting period. At the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held May 8, 2003, shareholders approved the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan 
for officers and employees of the Company. Under the Plan, 142,000 restricted shares of common stock have been granted to officers of the 
Company. Beginning in 2003, Parkway has replaced the grant of stock options with the grant of restricted shares or share equivalents to 
employees and officers of the Company. Accordingly, 5,246 deferred incentive shares units were granted to employees of the Company in 
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2003 in lieu of a similar value of stock options. Compensation expense related to the restricted stock and deferred incentive share units of 
$694,000 was recognized in 2003. 

Income taxes 

The Company is a REIT for federal income tax purposes. A corporate REIT is a legal entity that holds real estate assets, and through 
distributions to stockholders, is exempt from the payment of Federal income taxes at the corporate level. To maintain qualification as a REIT, 
the Company is subject to a number of organizational and operational requirements, including a requirement that it currently distribute to 
stockholders at least 90% of its annual REIT taxable income. 

Net Income Per Common Share 

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing income available to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of 
common shares outstanding for the year. In arriving at income available to common stockholders, preferred stock dividends are deducted. 
Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if dilutive operating partnership units, dilutive employee stock options and warrants 
and dilutive 8.34% Series B cumulative convertible preferred stock were exercised or converted into common stock that then shared in the 
earnings of Parkway. 

The computation of diluted EPS is as follows: 

Year Ended December 31 
 2003 2002 2001 

(in thousands, except per share data) 
Numerator: 
  Basic and diluted net income 
    available to common stockholders $29,119 $17,458 $17,502 

Denominator: 
  Basic weighted average shares 10,224 9,312 9,339 
  Effect of employee stock options and warrants 229 168 103 
  Diluted weighted average shares 10,453 9,480 9,442 

Diluted earnings per share $    2.79 $    1.84 $    1.85 

The computation of diluted EPS did not assume the conversion of the 8.34% Series B cumulative convertible preferred stock because their 
inclusion would have been antidilutive. 
 
Reclassifications 

Certain reclassifications have been made in the 2002 and 2001 consolidated financial statements to conform to the 2003 classifications 
with no impact on previously reported net income or stockholders' equity. 

New Accounting Pronouncements 

       In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an 
interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51” (“FIN 46”). FIN 46 requires the consolidation of entities in which a company absorbs a 
majority of the entity’s expected losses, receives a majority of the entity’s expected residual returns, or both, as a result of ownership, 
contractual or other financial interests in the entity. Currently, entities are generally consolidated by a company when it has a controlling 
financial interest through ownership of a majority voting interest in the entity. 

The Company is currently evaluating the effects of the issuance of FIN 46 on the accounting for its ownership interest in Moore Building 
Associates LP (“MBALP”) (See Note C). Except for the possible consolidation of MBALP, Parkway does not anticipate the adoption of FIN 
46 will have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The Company will adopt FIN 46 in the first quarter of 
2004. 

       In the third quarter of 2003, the Company adopted SFAS No. 150 "Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with characteristics of 
both Liabilities and Equity." This statement establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and measures certain financial instruments with 
characteristics of both liabilities and equity. This statement is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, 
and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. As the Company does not have financial 
instruments that are required to be reclassified from equity to a liability, the adoption of SFAS No. 150 did not have any impact on the 
Company's consolidated financial statements. 
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Note B - Investment in Office and Parking Properties 

At December 31, 2003, Parkway owned or had a direct interest in 54 office and parking properties located in nine states with an aggregate 
of 8,723,000 square feet of leasable space. The purchase price of office properties acquired during the year ended December 31, 2003 is as 
follows: 

 Cost 
Market Location (in thousands) 

Orlando, FL $  32,000 
Atlanta, GA 40,000 
Houston, TX 12,000 
Charlotte, NC 41,000 

$125,000 

The unaudited pro forma effect on the Company's results of operations of the 2003 purchases as if the purchases had occurred on January 
1, 2002 is as follows (in thousands, except per share data): 

 Year Ended 
 December 31 
 2003 2002 
Revenues $12,096 $21,439 
Net income $ 3,041 $ 4,544 
Basic earnings per share $ .30 $ .49 
Diluted earnings per share $ .29 $ .48 

Pro forma results do not purport to be indicative of actual results had the purchase been made at January 1, 2002, or the results that may 
occur in the future. 

On March 6, 2003, Parkway sold a 70% interest in Viad Corporate Center (“Viad Joint Venture”), a 482,000 square foot office building in 
Phoenix, Arizona, to Investcorp International, Inc. (“Investcorp”) for a total of $42 million. Parkway continues to provide management and 
leasing for the building on a day-to-day basis. In connection with the sale, Parkway recognized a $175,000 acquisition fee in accordance with 
the terms of the joint venture agreement signed in October 2000 with Investcorp. The Company recorded a gain on the sale of the 70% joint 
venture interest of $1.1 million.  

       Simultaneous with closing the Viad Joint Venture, the partnership that owns the property closed a $42.5 million mortgage on the building. 
The non-recourse first mortgage is interest-only for a term of two years with three one-year extension options. The mortgage bears interest at 
LIBOR plus 260 basis points. For $15.5 million of the loan, LIBOR can not be lower than 2.25%. At December 31, 2003, the interest rate on 
the mortgage was 4.16%. Parkway received net cash proceeds from the sale and the financing of $54.3 million. The proceeds were used to 
reduce amounts outstanding on the Company’s lines of credit, pending reinvestment in new properties. The Viad Joint Venture is accounted for 
using the equity method of accounting. The Company’s pro rata share of debt from the joint venture is included in the calculation of the ratio 
of debt to total market capitalization. 

On May 28, 2003, Parkway sold an 80% interest in two suburban Jackson, Mississippi properties, River Oaks Place and the IBM Building, to 
approximately 35 individual investors (“Jackson Joint Venture”). The sale values the properties at $16.7 million. The IBM Building and the River 
Oaks Plaza comprise approximately 170,000 square feet located in two submarkets. Parkway continues to manage and lease the properties for 
a market-based fee and retained a 20% ownership interest in the entity that owns the buildings. The Company recorded a gain on the sale of 
the 80% joint venture interest of $4.2 million.  

       Simultaneous with closing the Jackson Joint Venture, the entity that owns the properties closed an $11.525 million non-recourse first 
mortgage secured by the properties. The mortgage has a fixed interest rate of 5.84%, amortizes over 28 years and matures in ten years. Parkway 
received net cash proceeds from the sale and the financing of approximately $15.5 million, which was used to reduce borrowings under the 
Company's short-term lines of credit pending the reinvestment in new properties. The Jackson Joint Venture is accounted for using the equity 
method of accounting. The Company’s pro rata share of debt from the joint venture is included in the calculation of the ratio of debt to total 
market capitalization. 

On June 26, 2003, Parkway sold .74 acres of land in Houston, Texas. Net proceeds from the sale in the amount of $451,000 were used to 
reduce borrowings under the Company’s short-term lines of credit. The Company recorded a gain on the sale of $362,000. 

On August 1, 2003, the Company sold its investment in the BB&T Financial Center in Winston-Salem, North Carolina to Cabot Investment 
Properties for $27.5 million plus the assumption of future tenant improvements of approximately $500,000. Parkway Realty Services 
continues to manage and lease the property under a ten-year management agreement and recognized a third quarter acquisition fee of 
$186,000. The Company recorded a third quarter gain on this sale of $5,020,000. The taxable gain from this sale was deferred through a 
Section 1031 like-kind exchange and accordingly, no special dividend of capital gain was required. The sales proceeds were used to purchase 
the Peachtree Dunwoody Pavilion. In connection with the sale, the Company paid $11,201,000 toward the early extinguishment of the 7.31% 
mortgage secured by the BB&T Financial Center. 
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       The following is a schedule by year of future approximate minimum rental receipts under noncancelable leases for office buildings owned 
as of December 31, 2003 (in thousands): 

2004 $114,818 
2005 100,704 
2006 76,874 
2007 63,942 
2008 47,143 
Subsequently 116,969 

$520,450 

       On January 29, 2004, Parkway purchased Maitland 200, a 206,000 square foot, four-story office building in the Maitland Center 
submarket of Orlando, Florida. The property was acquired for $26,300,000 plus $1,400,000 in closing costs and anticipated capital 
expenditures and leasing commissions during the first two years of ownership. The purchase was funded with the Company’s existing lines of 
credit and represents the reinvestment of proceeds from the sale of properties through joint ventures during 2003.  

The Company has completed its due diligence for the $76.3 million acquisition of the 410,000 square foot, 92% leased Capital City Plaza in the 
Buckhead sub-market of Atlanta, Georgia. Parkway’s request to assume an existing first mortgage in the amount of $43 million is under review by the 
lender. The proposed acquisition, which is projected for late March 2004, is subject to customary closing conditions, and there can be no assurance 
that this acquisition will occur. 

Note C - Investment in Unconsolidated Joint Ventures 

In addition to the 54 office and parking properties owned directly, the Company is also invested in four joint ventures with unrelated 
investors. Parkway retained a minority interest of 30% in two joint ventures, 20% in one joint venture and 50% in the other. These investments 
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, as Parkway does not control any of these joint ventures. Accordingly, the assets and 
liabilities of the joint ventures are not included on Parkway's consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2003 and 2002. Information 
relating to these unconsolidated joint ventures is detailed below (in thousands). 

Parkway’s Percentage 
Joint Venture Entity Property Name Location Ownership % Square Feet Leased 

Parkway 233 North Michigan, LLC 233 N. Michigan Chicago, IL 30.0% 1,070 91.3% 
Phoenix OfficeInvest, LLC Viad Corp Center Phoenix, AZ 30.0% 482 91.9% 
Wink/Parkway Partnership Wink Building New Orleans, LA 50.0% 32 100.0% 
Parkway Joint Venture, LLC (“Jackson JV”) IBM/River Oaks Jackson, MS 20.0% 170 92.5% 

 1,754 91.7% 

       Balance sheet information for the unconsolidated joint ventures is summarized below as of December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002 
(in thousands): 

Balance Sheet Information 
December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002 

233 North Viad Corp Wink Jackson Combined 233 North Wink Combined 
Michigan Center Building JV Total Michigan Building Total 

Unconsolidated Joint Ventures (at 100%): 
Real Estate, Net $171,396 $59,587 $1,282 $16,595 $248,860 $172,073 $1,303 $173,376 
Other Assets 13,417 2,939 158 723 17,237 16,416 159 16,575 
Total Assets $184,813 $62,526 $1,440 $17,318 $266,097 $188,489 $1,462 $189,951 

Mortgage Debt $102,002 $42,500 $  526 $11,442 $156,470 $103,741 $1,596 $104,337 
Other Liabilities 9,054 2,048 4 434 11,540 11,630 2 11,632 
Partners'/Shareholders' Equity 73,757 17,978 910 5,442 98,087 73,118 864 73,982 
Total Liabilities and  
    Partners'/Shareholders' Equity $184,813 $62,526 $1,440 $17,318 $266,097 $188,489 $1,462 $189,951 

Parkway’s Share of Unconsolidated Joint Ventures:
Real Estate, Net $  51,419 $17,876 $   641 $  3,319 $  73,255 $  51,622 $  652 $  52,274 

Mortgage Debt $  30,601 $12,750 $   263 $  2,288 $  45,902 $  31,122 $  298 $  31,420 

Net Investment in Joint Ventures $  14,963 $14,577 $   455 $    31 $  20,026 $  15,209 $  431 $  15,640 
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       Income statement information for the unconsolidated joint ventures is summarized below for the years ending December 31, 2003 and 
2002 (in thousands): 

Results of Operations 
Year Ended December 31, 2003 Year Ended December 31, 2002 

233 North Viad Corp Wink Jackson Combined 233 North Wink Combined 
 Michigan Center Building JV Total Michigan Building Total 

Unconsolidated Joint Ventures (at 100%): 
Revenues $  34,082  $  9,697  $ 305  $  1,644  $45,728  $  19,537  $304  $19,841  
Operating Expenses (14,830) (4,387) (85) (698) (20,000) (8,646) (89) (8,735) 
Net Operating Income 19,252  5,310  220  946  25,728  10,891  215  11,106  
Interest Expense (7,522) (1,494) (49) (335) (9,400) (4,421) (54) (4,475) 
Loan Cost Amortization (119) (308) (2) (1) (430) (70) (3) (73) 
Depreciation and Amortization (5,362) (1,239) (23) (192) (6,816) (2,831) (23) (2,854) 
Preferred Distributions (1,664) -  -  -  (1,664) (1,048) -  (1,048) 
Net Income $    4,585  $  2,269  $ 146  $     418  $  7,418  $  12,521  $135  $  2,656  

Parkway’s Share of Unconsolidated Joint Ventures:
Net Income $    1,375  $    681  $   73  $     83  $  2,212  $ 12,756  $168  $  2,824  
Depreciation and Amortization 1,609  372  11  38  2,030  $ 12,849  12  $  2,861  
Funds from Operations $    2,984  $  1,053  $   84  $     121  $  4,242  $ 11,605  $180  $  1,685  

Interest Expense $    2,256  $  1,449  $   24  $       67  $  2,796  $ 11,327  $127  $  1,354  

Loan Cost Amortization $    2,236  $  1,093  $     1  $    -  $  2,130  $  12,521  $132  $  2,623  

Preferred Distributions $    1,499  $ 1,05-  $ -  $    -  $  2,499  $  12,314  $13 -  $  2,314  

Other Supplemental Information: 
Distributions from Unconsolidated JVs $    2,020  $  1,048  $   50  $       30  $  3,148  $ 11,608  $151  $  1,659  

FAD Adjustments $ (1,783) $ (318) $ -  $  (46) $ (2,147) $  1((881) $13 -  $  (881) 

       Parkway's share of the unconsolidated joint ventures' debt is as follows for December 31, 2003 and 2002 (in thousands): 

Parkway’s Share of Unconsolidated Joint Ventures’ Debt 
Type of Monthly Loan Balance Loan Balance 

Description Debt Service Interest Rate Maturity Debt Service 12/31/03 12/31/02 
Mortgage Notes Payable: 
     233 North Michigan Avenue Amortizing 7.350% 07/11/11 $229 $30,601 $31,122 
     Viad Corporate Center Interest Only LIBOR + 2.600% 03/11/05 45 12,750 - 
     Wink Building Amortizing 8.625% 07/01/09 5 263 298 
     Jackson JV Amortizing 5.840% 05/01/13 70 2,288 - 

$349 $45,902 $31,420 

Weighted Average Interest Rate at End of Year 6.396% 7.362% 

       Parkway's share of the scheduled principal payments on mortgage debt for the unconsolidated joint ventures for each of the next five years 
and thereafter through maturity as of December 31, 2003 are as follows (in thousands): 

233 North Viad Corporate Wink Jackson 
Schedule of Mortgage Maturities by Year: Michigan Center Building JV Total 
2004 $30,561 $         - $  38 $     34 $     633 
2005 602 12,750 42 37 13,431 
2006 647 - 45 39 731 
2007 696 - 50 41 787 
2008 747 - 54 44 845 
Thereafter 27,348 - 34 2,093 29,475 

$30,601 $12,750 $263 $2,288 $45,902 

In addition to the joint ventures described above, Parkway has an investment in and advances to Moore Building Associates LP 
(“MBALP”) established for the purpose of owning a commercial office building (the Toyota Center in Memphis, Tennessee). Parkway has a 
less than 1% ownership interest in MBALP and acts as the managing general partner of this partnership. MBALP is primarily funded with financing 
from a third party lender, which is secured by a first lien on the rental property of the partnership. The creditors of MBALP do not have recourse 
to the Company. Parkway accounts for this investment using the equity method of accounting, recording its share of the net income or loss 
based upon the terms of the partnership agreement. 
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In acting as the general partner, the Company is committed to providing additional funding to meet partnership operating deficits up to an 
aggregate amount of $1 million. At December 31, 2003, the Company’s aggregate net investment in the partnership was $6 million in the form 
of a note receivable which bears interest at 13%. These amounts represent the Company’s maximum exposure to loss at December 31, 2003 as 
a result of its involvement with MBALP. 

Note D - Non-Core Assets 

       At December 31, 2003, Parkway's investment in non-core assets consisted of the following (in thousands): 

Size Location Book Value 
12 acres New Orleans, LA $1,807 
17 acres Charlotte, NC 1,721 
Mortgage loan Texas 861 

$4,389 

       Subsequent to December 31, 2003, the mortgage loan was paid off.  

Note E - Notes Payable  

Notes payable to banks 

       At December 31, 2003, Parkway had $110,075,000 outstanding under a three-year $135 million unsecured revolving credit facility with a 
consortium of 13 banks with JPMorgan Chase Bank serving as the lead agent (the “$135 million line”), a $20 million unsecured one-year term loan 
facility with JP Morgan Chase Bank as administrative agent and other banks as participants (the “Term Loan”) and a $15 million unsecured line of credit 
with PNC Bank (the “$15 million line”). The interest rates on the lines of credit and the Term Loan were equal to the 30-day LIBOR rate plus 112.5 to 
137.5 basis points, depending upon overall Company leverage. The weighted average interest rate on the $135 million line, the Term Loan and the $15 
million line was 2.6% at December 31, 2003. 

Covenants related to the $15 million line, the $135 million line and the Term Loan include requirements for maintenance of minimum 
tangible net worth, fixed charge coverage, interest coverage, and debt service coverage. The lines also establish limits on the Company's 
indebtedness and dividends. 

On February 6, 2004, Parkway entered into a Credit Agreement with a consortium of 11 banks with Wachovia Capital Markets, LLC as Sole Lead 
Arranger and Sole Book Runner, Wachovia Bank, National Association as Administrative Agent, PNC Bank, National Association as Syndication Agent, 
and other banks as participants. The Credit Agreement provides for a three-year $170 million unsecured revolving credit facility (the “$170 million 
line”). The $170 million line will replace the $135 million line and the Term Loan. The interest rate on the $170 million line is equal to the 30-day 
LIBOR rate plus 100 to 132.5 basis points, depending upon overall Company leverage. 

The $170 million line matures February 6, 2007 and allows for a one-year extension option available at maturity. The line is expected to fund 
acquisitions of additional investments and has a current interest rate of LIBOR rate plus 117.50 basis points. The Company paid a facility fee of 
$170,000 (10 basis points) and origination fees of $556,000 (32.71 basis points) upon closing of the loan agreement and pays an annual 
administration fee of $35,000. The Company also pays fees on the unused portion of the line based upon overall Company leverage, with the 
current rate set at 12.5 basis points. 

On February 6, 2004, Parkway amended and renewed the $15 million line. This line of credit matures February 4, 2005, is unsecured and 
is expected to fund the daily cash requirements of the Company’s treasury management system. The $15 million line has a current interest rate 
equal to the 30-day LIBOR rate plus 117.5 basis points. The Company paid a facility fee of $15,000 (10 basis points) upon closing of the loan 
agreement. Under the $15 million line, the Company does not pay annual administration fees or fees on the unused portion of the line. 

       The Company's interest rate hedge contract as of December 31, 2003 is summarized as follows (in thousands): 

Fair 
Market Value 

Type of Notional Maturity Fixed December 31 
Hedge Amount Date Reference Rate Rate 2003 2002 

Reverse Swap $  4,917 07/15/06 1-Month LIBOR + 3.455% 8.080% $  243 $  325 

The effect of the reverse swap is to convert a fixed rate mortgage note payable to a variable rate. The Company does not hold or issue this
type of derivative contract for trading or speculative purposes. 

Effective February 24, 2004, the Company entered into a $60 million interest rate swap agreement with Union Planters Bank effectively 
locking the LIBOR rate on this portion of outstanding unsecured, floating rate bank debt at 1.293% through December 31, 2004.  
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Mortgage notes payable without recourse 

       A summary of fixed rate mortgage notes payable at December 31, 2003 and 2002 which are non-recourse to the Company, is as follows (in 
thousands): 

Carrying  
Amount Note Balance 

 Interest Monthly Maturity Of December 31 
Office Property Rate Payment Date Collateral 2003 2002 

Lakewood II 8.080% $      66 07/15/06 $    9,957 $    5,161 $    5,624 
Citrus Center (1) 6.000% 164 08/01/07 30,870 20,560 - 
Teachers Insurance and 
    Annuity Association (12 properties) 6.945% 869 07/01/08 154,132 72,879 78,051 
Honeywell 8.125% 89 10/10/08 14,641 4,649 5,311 
John Hancock Facility (3 properties) 4.830% 97 03/01/09 30,012 24,000 - 
John Hancock Facility (3 properties) 5.270% 81 05/01/10 29,369 18,800 - 
Capitol Center 8.180% 165 09/01/10 37,204 20,046 20,367 
One Jackson Place 7.850% 152 10/10/10 17,470 14,048 14,742 
111 Capitol Building (2) 7.000% - 06/01/11 - - 4,446 
400 North Belt 8.250% 65 08/01/11 9,130 4,419 4,789 
Woodbranch 8.250% 32 08/01/11 4,326 2,128 2,306 
Roswell North 8.375% 33 01/01/12 4,555 2,336 2,515 
Bank of America Plaza 7.100% 146 05/10/12 30,295 19,952 20,273 
One Park 10 Plaza 7.100% 64 06/01/12 6,900 9,389 9,478 
BB&T Financial Center (2) 7.300% - 11/10/12 - - 11,674 
First Tennessee Plaza 7.170% 136 12/15/12 28,871 10,820 11,647 
Morgan Keegan Tower 7.620% 163 10/01/19 32,041 18,003 18,523 

 $2,322 $439,773 $247,190 $209,746 

(1)  The Citrus Center mortgage in the amount of $19,665 was assumed with the purchase of the building on February 11, 2003. The mortgage 
note payable, which has a stated rate of 7.91%, was recorded at $21,153 to reflect it at fair value based on Parkway’s current incremental 
borrowing rate of 6%. 

(2)  Principal paid on early extinguishment of mortgage notes payable was $15,422. 

The aggregate annual maturities of mortgage notes payable at December 31, 2003 are as follows (in thousands): 

2004 $  11,319 
2005 12,635 
2006 17,646 
2007 31,754 
2008 55,892 
Subsequently 117,944 

$247,190 

Note F - Income Taxes 

The Company elected to be taxed as a real estate investment trust (REIT) under the Internal Revenue Code, commencing with its taxable 
year ended December 31, 1997. To qualify as a REIT, the Company must meet a number of organizational and operational requirements, 
including a requirement that it currently distribute at least 90% of its adjusted taxable income to its stockholders. It is management's current 
intention to adhere to these requirements and maintain the Company's REIT status. As a REIT, the Company generally will not be subject to 
corporate level federal income tax on taxable income it distributes currently to its stockholders. If the Company fails to qualify as a REIT in any 
taxable year, it will be subject to federal income taxes at regular corporate rates (including any applicable alternative minimum tax) and may 
not be able to qualify as a REIT for four subsequent taxable years. Even if the Company qualifies for taxation as a REIT, the Company may be 
subject to certain state and local taxes on its income and property, and to federal income and excise taxes on its undistributed taxable income. 
In addition, taxable income from non-REIT activities managed through taxable REIT subsidiaries is subject to federal, state and local income 
taxes. 

       In January 1998, the Company completed its reorganization into an umbrella partnership REIT ("UPREIT") structure under which 
substantially all of the Company's office building real estate assets are owned by an operating partnership, Parkway Properties LP (the 
"Operating Partnership"). Presently, substantially all interests in the Operating Partnership are owned by the Company and a wholly-owned 
subsidiary. 

At December 31, 2003, the Company had net operating loss ("NOL") carryforwards for federal income tax purposes of approximately 
$9,253,000, which expire at various dates through 2018. The Company expects to utilize the remaining NOL by December 2008. The 
utilization of these NOLs can cause the Company to incur a small alternative minimum tax liability. 
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       The Company's income differs for income tax and financial reporting purposes principally because real estate owned has a different basis 
for tax and financial reporting purposes, producing different gains upon disposition and different amounts of annual depreciation. The following 
reconciles GAAP net income to taxable income for the years ending December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 (in thousands): 

 2003 2002 2001 
 Estimate Actual Actual 
GAAP net income from REIT operations (1)  $43,181  $29,512  $26,548  
GAAP to tax adjustments: 
     Depreciation and amortization 4,187  3,406  2,498  
     Gains and losses from capital transactions (5,434) 2,572 (165) 
     Restricted stock amortization 686  2,189  1,272  
     Restricted stock released to shareholders (2,715) -  - 
     Stock options exercised (2,615) (824) (834) 
     Other differences (384) (63) 609 
Taxable income before adjustments 36,906  36,792  29,928  
Less:  NOL carryforward -  (1,293) (1,131) 
Adjusted taxable income subject to 90% dividend requirement $36,906  $35,499  $28,797  

(1)  GAAP net income from REIT operations is net of amounts attributable to minority interest. 

       The following reconciles cash dividends paid with the dividends paid deduction for the years ending December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 
(in thousands): 

2003 2002 2001 
Estimate Actual Actual 

Cash dividends paid $37,792  $35,499  $31,463  
Less:  Dividends designated to prior year -  -  (2,666) 
Less:  Dividends on deferred compensation plan shares (333) -  -  
Dividends paid deduction $37,459  $35,499  $28,797  

The following characterizes distributions paid per common share for the years ending December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001: 

2003 2002 2001 
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage Amount Percentage 

Ordinary income $2.32 89.2% $2.52 98.4% $2.45 100.0% 
Post May 5, 2003 capital gain .16 6.2% - - - - 
Unrecaptured Section 1250 gain .12 4.6% 0.04 1.6% - - 

$2.60 100.0% $2.56 100.0% $2.45 100.0% 

Note G - Stock Option and Long-Term Compensation Plans 

The Company has elected to follow APB No. 25 and related Interpretations in accounting for its employee stock options because, as 
discussed below, the alternative fair value accounting provided for under SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation", requires 
the use of option valuation models that were not developed for use in valuing employee stock options. 

Effective January 1, 2003, the stockholders of the Company approved Parkway’s 2003 Equity Incentive Plan (“the 2003 Plan”) that 
authorized the grant of up to 200,000 equity based awards to employees of the Company. The 2003 Plan replaced the 1994 Stock Option 
and Long-Term Compensation Plan. At present, it is Parkway’s intention to grant restricted stock and/or deferred incentive share units instead 
of stock options to employees of the Company, although the 2003 Plan authorizes various forms of incentive awards, including options. On 
each July 1 beginning with July 1, 2004, the number of shares available under the plan will increase automatically by .25% of the number of 
shares of common stock outstanding on that date, provided that the number of shares available for grant under this plan and the 2001 
Directors’ Plan shall not exceed 11.5% of the shares outstanding (less the restricted shares issued and outstanding) plus the shares issuable on 
the conversion of outstanding convertible debt and equity securities or the exercise of outstanding warrants or other rights to purchase 
common shares. The 2003 Plan has a ten-year term. 

       The 2001 Directors’ Plan provides for option grants to the directors. The plan has a ten-year term and options for up to 300,000 shares of 
common stock may be granted under the plan.  

Under the prior 1994 Stock Option and Long-Term Compensation Plan, a total of 169,000 shares of restricted stock had been issued to 
officers of the Company with a vesting period of the earlier of 10 years or December 31, 2002 if certain operating results were achieved 
through the 5 in 50 Plan. Parkway met the goals set forth in the 5 in 50 Plan and effective February 2003, the Company’s Compensation 
Committee determined that all of the restricted shares were vested. The restricted shares were valued at $4,836,000 and had been fully 
amortized as of December 31, 2002. 
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In 2003, 142,000 shares of restricted stock were issued to certain officers of the Company in connection with the Value2 plan. The 
restricted shares issued are valued at $5,092,000, and vest at the end of 7 years or December 31, 2005 if certain goals of the Value2 plan are 
achieved. Additionally, 5,246 deferred incentive share units were granted to employees of the Company in 2003. The deferred incentive share 
units are valued at $235,000, and the units vest at the end of 4 years. Compensation expense related to the restricted stock and deferred 
incentive share units of $694,000 was recognized in 2003. 

       Pro forma information regarding net income and net income per share is required by SFAS No. 123, and has been determined as if the
Company had accounted for its employee stock options under the fair value method of that Statement. The fair value for these options was 
estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions for 2003, 2002 
and 2001: risk-free interest of 4.0%,  3.50%, and 4.50%, respectively; dividend yield of 6.41%, 7.30% and 7.91%, respectively; volatility factor 
of the expected market price of the Company's common stock of .129, .202 and .218, respectively; and a weighted-average expected life of 
the options of five years for the 1994 Stock Option Plan in 2003, 2002 and 2001; five years, five years and three years for 2003, 2002 and 
2001, respectively, for the 1991 Directors’ Stock Option Plan; and five years for 2003 and 2002, for the 2001 Directors’ Stock Option Plan. 
Because the Company's employee stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because changes 
in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management's opinion, the existing model does not 
necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its employee stock options. The weighted average fair value of options granted 
during 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $2.01, $2.75 and $2.88, respectively. 

       For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options granted in 2003, 2002 and 2001 is amortized to expense 
over the options' vesting period. The Company's pro forma information is detailed in Note A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
under Stock based compensation. 

       A summary of the Company's stock option activity and related information is as follows: 

1994 Stock 1991 Directors 2001 Directors 
Option Plan Stock Option Plan Stock Option Plan 

Weighted  Weighted Weighted 
 Average Average Average 

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price 
Outstanding at December 31, 1999 748,172  $  27.75 142,000  $  23.27 -  $       - 
Granted 177,200  32.80 -  - -  - 
Exercised (19,350) 23.73 (49,500) 17.86 - - 
Forfeited (36,320) 30.66 (3,000) - - - 
Outstanding at December 31, 2001 869,702  28.75 89,500  25.91  -  - 
Granted  72,750  35.69 -  -  40,500  33.31 
Exercised  (97,084) 29.38 (25,500) 22.32 (3,000) 30.70 
Forfeited  (17,921) 30.90 -  - -  - 
Outstanding at December 31, 2002 827,447  29.24 64,000  27.34 37,500  33.52 
Granted  -  - -  - 25,500  40.46 
Exercised  (183,661) 28.06 (20,500) 23.20 (13,700) 33.75 
Forfeited  (15,174) 31.65 -  - -  - 
Outstanding at December 31, 2003 628,612  $  29.52 43,500  $  29.29 49,300  $  37.05 
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       Following is a summary of the status of options outstanding at December 31, 2003: 

Outstanding Options Exercisable Options 
 Weighted 
 Average Weighted Weighted 
 Remaining Average Average 
 Contractual Exercise Exercise 

Exercise Price Range Number Life Price Number Price 
1994 Stock Option Plan 
$  9.00 - $12.22 33,489 .7 years $11.86 33,489 $11.86 
$12.23 - $15.75 22,763 2.1 years $14.21 22,763 $14.21 
$15.76 - $25.63 16,125 2.5 years $21.00 16,125 $21.00 
$25.64 - $29.00 80,984 5.0 years $27.66 67,620 $27.54 
$29.01 - $31.00 121,886 6.4 years $30.17 69,151 $30.10 
$31.01 - $33.50 197,205 5.2 years $31.35 164,708 $31.27 
$33.51 - $36.00 156,160 7.9 years $34.57 24,037 $33.65 
1991 Directors Stock Option Plan 
$  8.00 - $10.20 2,250 1.4 years $10.17 2,250 $10.17 
$10.21 - $16.00 2,250 2.5 years $16.00 2,250 $16.00 
$25.01 - $30.00 10,500 5.8 years $28.78 10,500 $28.78 
$30.01 - $36.00 28,500 5.3 years $32.03 28,500 $32.03 
2001 Directors Stock Option Plan 
$30.00 - $36.00 12,000 7.4 years $30.70 12,000 $30.70 
$36.01 - $40.00 29,800 9.0 years $37.83 29,800 $37.83 
$40.01 - $45.00 7,500 9.8 years $44.10 7,500 $44.10 

Note H - Other Matters 

On March 24, 2003, the Company sold 690,000 shares of common stock in a public offering in which Wachovia Securities was the 
underwriter for net proceeds of $24.3 million or $35.25 per share. The proceeds were used to purchase Peachtree Dunwoody Pavilion and the 
Wells Fargo Building in the third quarter of 2003. 

       Through the Company’s Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan (“DRIP Plan”), 182,033 common shares were sold during 2003. 
Net proceeds received on the issuance of shares were $7,799,000, which equates to an average net price per share of $42.85 at a discount of 
2.1%. The proceeds were used to reduce amounts outstanding under the Company’s short-term lines of credit. 

      In 2001, the Company issued 2,142,857 shares of 8.34% Series B Cumulative Convertible Preferred stock to Rothschild/Five Arrows. In 
addition to the issuance of Series B preferred stock, Parkway issued a warrant to Five Arrows to purchase 75,000 shares of the Company’s 
common stock at a price of $35 for a period of seven years. During 2003, 200,000 shares of Series B preferred stock were converted into 
200,000 shares of Parkway common stock. As of December 31, 2003, there were 1,942,857 shares of Series B preferred stock outstanding. 
Dividends of $6,091,000 and $6,257,000 were declared on the stock in 2003 and 2002, respectively. There is no public market for
Parkway’s Series B Cumulative Convertible Preferred stock.  

On June 30, 2003, the Company redeemed all 2,650,000 shares of its 8.75% Series A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock at a 
redemption price of $25 per share or $66.25 million. The Series A Preferred Stock was previously listed for trading on the New York Stock 
Exchange under the symbol “PKY PrA”, but is no longer outstanding. All 2,760,000 authorized shares of Series A Preferred Stock have been 
reclassified back into common stock. The redemption was funded from proceeds of the Company’s June 2003 issuance of Series D Preferred 
Stock along with a portion of the proceeds from the Company’s March 2003 issuance of common stock. In connection with the redemption of 
the Series A Preferred Stock, a $2,619,000 non-cash adjustment for original issue costs was recorded in the second quarter of 2003.  

       On June 27, 2003, the Company completed the sale of 2,400,000 shares of 8.00% Series D Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock 
with net proceeds to the Company of approximately $58 million. The proceeds were used to redeem the Company’s 8.75% Series A 
Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock. The Series D Preferred Stock has a $25 liquidation value per share and will be redeemable at the 
option of the Company on or after June 27, 2008. The Company’s shares of Series D preferred stock are listed on the New York Stock 
Exchange and trade under the symbol “PKY PrD”.  
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Supplemental Profit and Loss Information 

       Included in operating expenses are taxes, principally property taxes, of $14,607,000, $17,365,000 and $14,893,000 for the years 
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. 

Supplemental Cash Flow Information 

Year Ended December 31 
2003 2002 2001 

 (In thousands) 

Interest paid $18,735 $24,740 $24,553 
Income taxes paid 118 19 142 
Mortgage assumed in purchase 21,153 - - 
Restricted shares issued and adjustments - - 60 
Shares issued in lieu of Directors' fees 76 62 55 
Mortgage transferred in sale of 70% interest in Parkway 233 North Michigan LLC - 73,289 - 
Note receivable from the sale of 70% interest in Parkway 233 North Michigan LLC - 747 - 
Original issue costs associated with redemption of preferred stock 2,619 - - 

Litigation 

The Company is not presently engaged in any litigation other than ordinary routine litigation incidental to its business. Management 
believes such litigation will not materially affect the consolidated financial position, operations or liquidity of the Company. 

Interest, Rents Receivable and Other Assets 

December 31 
2003 2002 

 (In thousands) 

Rents receivable (net of reserves) $  1,108 $29,775 
Straight line rent receivable 7,647 6,942 
Other receivables 5,793 5,343 
Unamortized lease costs 8,877 7,495 
Unamortized loan costs 2,437 1,983 
Unamortized intangible assets 7,732 - 
Escrow and other deposits 6,709 4,893 
Prepaid items 986 1,040 
Other assets 1,515 1,288 

$42,804 $29,759 

Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities 

December 31 
2003 2002 

 (In thousands) 
Office property payables: 
     Accrued expenses and accounts payable $  9,694 $11,842 
     Accrued property taxes 10,360 10,892 
     Security deposits 2,338 2,041 
Corporate payables 3,326 4,099 
Deferred compensation plan liability 4,673 - 
Dividends payable 2,618 2,772 
Deferred gains 861 869 
Accrued payroll 1,607 1,455 
Interest payable 1,255 1,082 
Other payables 331 348 

$37,063 $35,400 
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Note I - Fair Values of Financial Instruments 

Cash and cash equivalents 

       The carrying amounts for cash and cash equivalents approximated fair value at December 31, 2003 and 2002. 

Mortgage loans 

The fair value for the mortgage loan receivable is estimated based on net realizable value and discounted cash flow analysis, using 
interest rates currently being offered on loans with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality. The fair value of the mortgage loan 
receivable at December 31, 2003 approximated its carrying amount of $861,000. 

The fair value of the mortgage notes payable without recourse are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis, based on the Company's 
current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements. The aggregate fair value of the mortgage notes payable 
without recourse at December 31, 2003 was $259,408,000 as compared to its carrying amount of $247,190,000. The aggregate fair value of 
the mortgage notes payable without recourse at December 31, 2002 was $224,227,000 as compared to its carrying amount of 
$209,746,000. 
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Note J - Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited): 

       Summarized quarterly financial data for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 are as follows (in thousands, except per share data): 

 2003 
 First Second Third Fourth 

Revenues (other than gains) $  37,994  $  36,415  $  35,771  $  35,870  
Expenses (30,407) (28,374) (27,856) (29,102) 
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures 431  623  590  568  
Gain on sale of joint venture interests and real estate 1,096  4,545  5,020  -  
Minority interest - unit holders (1) - (1) (1) 
Net income 9,113  13,209  13,524  7,335  
Original issue costs associated with redemption of preferred stock -  (2,619) -  -  
Dividends on preferred stock (1,449) (1,503) (1,200) (1,200) 
Dividends on convertible preferred stock (1,564) (1,564) (1,545) (1,418) 
Net income available to common stockholders $    6,100  $    7,523  $  10,779  $    4,717  

Net income per common share: 
      Basic $      0.65  $      0.74  $      1.04  $      0.44  

      Diluted $      0.63  $      0.72  $      0.96  $      0.43  

Dividends per common share $      0.65  $      0.65  $      0.65  $      0.65  

Weighted average shares outstanding: 
     Basic 9,449  10,224  10,411  10,795  
     Diluted 9,610  10,457  12,790  11,030  

 2002 
 First Second Third Fourth 
Revenues (other than gains) $  41,064  $  39,396  $  37,453  $  37,347  
Expenses (32,557) (31,866) (30,206) (30,690) 
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures 16  133  322  353  
Loss on sale of joint venture interest -  (269) -  -  
Impairment loss on real estate available for sale -  -  -  (205) 
Impairment loss on office property -  -  -  (1,594) 
Minority interest - unit holders -  (1) -  (1) 
Income before discontinued operations  8,523  7,393  7,569  5,210  
Discontinued operations: 
     Income from discontinued operations -  47  -  -  
     Gain on sale of real estate from discontinued operations -  770  -  -  
Net income 8,523  8,210  7,569  5,210  
Dividends on preferred stock (1,449) (1,449) (1,450) (1,449) 
Dividends on convertible preferred stock (1,564) (1,565) (1,564) (1,564) 
Net income available to common stockholders $    5,510  $    5,196  $    4,555  $    2,197  

Net income per common share: 
     Basic: 
     Income before discontinued operations $        .60  $        .47  $        .49  $        .23  
     Discontinued operations -  .09  -  -  
Net income $        .60  $        .56  $        .49  $        .23  

Diluted: 
Income before discontinued operations $        .59  $        .46  $        .48  $        .23  
Discontinued operations -  .09  -  -  
Net income $        .59  $        .55  $        .48  $        .23  

Dividends per common share $        .63  $        .63  $        .65  $        .65  

Weighted average shares outstanding: 
     Basic 9,254  9,285  9,329  9,376  
     Diluted 9,401  9,502  9,493  9,520  

{  52 }



Company Info
Corporate Headquarters
Parkway Properties, Inc.
One Jackson Place, Suite 1000
188 East Capitol Street
Jackson, MS 39201
(601) 948-4091 / 1-800-748-1667

Independent Auditors
Ernst & Young LLP

Registrar and Transfer and Dividend Agent
Computershare Trust Company, Inc.
1-800-942-5909

Shares
The Common Stock of Parkway Properties, Inc. is listed
on The New York Stock Exchange under the symbol PKY.

The 8.0% Series D Cumulative Redeemable Preferred
Stock of Parkway Properties, Inc. is listed on The New
York Stock Exchange under the symbol PKY PrD.

Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan
The Company offers a Dividend Reinvestment and Stock

Purchase Plan which allows its shareholders to automatically
invest dividends as well as make voluntary cash payments
for the purchase of additional common shares at a discount.
For additional information, contact Computershare Trust
Company, Inc. at 1-800-942-5909 or visit our web site
at www.pky.com.

Shareholder Information
Information on the Company, including news releases,
quarterly reports and Form 10-K, is available at www.pky.com.
Questions or requests for information can be e-mailed
to the Company at mail@pky.com.

Annual Meeting
The Annual Stockholders Meeting will be held at 1:30
p.m. on May 6, 2004, at the 111 Capitol Building, 111 East
Capitol Street, Jackson, Mississippi.

Member
National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts, Inc.

Urban Land Institute

Certified Commercial Investment Member

Institute for Real Estate Management

Building Owners and Managers Association International

Board of Directors
Daniel P. Friedman
New York, NY; Director since 2002;
Managing Member, Radiant Partners, LLC;
Vice Chairman of Imperial Parking Corp.

Roger P. Friou
Jackson, MS; Director since 1995;
Private Investor.

Martin L. Garcia
Tampa, FL; Director since 1998;
Managing Director, Pinehill Capital
Partners; President, Garcia Enterprises;
Hill, Ward & Henderson, P.A.

Matthew W. Kaplan
New York, NY; Director since 2000;
Managing Director, Rothschild Realty, Inc.

Michael J. Lipsey
Orlando, FL; Director since 1997;
President, The Lipsey Company
(Commercial real estate training 
and consulting).

Joe F. Lynch
Houston, TX; Director since 1994;
Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer, First Continental
Corporation; Limited Partner and
Manager of the General Partner of 
First Continental Investment Co., Ltd.

Steven G. Rogers
Jackson, MS; Director since 1996;
President since 1993; Chief Executive
Officer since 1997.

Leland R. Speed
Jackson, MS; Director since 1978;
Chairman of the Board since 1980;
Chief Executive Officer 1980 to 1997;
Chairman of the Board, EastGroup
Properties, Inc.

Lenore M. Sullivan
Dallas, TX; Director since 2003;
Lecturer and Associate Director, 
Center for Real Estate Finance, 
University of Texas at Austin.

Executive Officers
Leland R. Speed
Chairman of the Board

Steven G. Rogers
President and Chief Executive Officer

Marshall A. Loeb
Executive Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer and Secretary

James M. Ingram
Executive Vice President 
and Chief Investment Officer

Thomas C. Maloney
Executive Vice President 
and Chief Operating Officer

G. Mitch Mattingly
Executive Vice President 
and Senior Asset Manager

Sarah P. Clark
Senior Vice President, Strategic
Planning and Investor Relations

David R. Fowler
Senior Vice President

Mandy M. Pope
Senior Vice President 
and Controller

Jack R. Sullenberger
Senior Vice President 
of Technical Services



Viad corporate center in

phoenix features many world-class

statues, including “sightseeing” by

j. seward johnson, jr. these works

of art are excellent examples of

fixtures — one of the 4fs at parkway

that also include flags, flowers

and fellowship. ��

Viad corporate center in

phoenix features many world-class

statues, including “sightseeing” by

j. seward johnson, jr. these works

of art are excellent examples of

fixtures — one of the 4fs at parkway

that also include flags, flowers

and fellowship.

Viad corporate center in

phoenix features many world-class

statues, including “sightseeing” by

j. seward johnson, jr. these works

of art are excellent examples of

fixtures — one of the 4fs at parkway

that also include flags, flowers

and fellowship.




